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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEwEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of National
Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present to you the 2014 annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

During the year 2014, the Group continued to adopt the
developmental strategy of consolidating its cultural and
entertaining businesses for the sake of becoming an omni-
bearing conglomerate in the culture and entertainment industry
and it has been actively devoting resources on the development
of the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio and National Arts Resort
Hotel (collectively the “Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project”).

The National Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) and Xigiao National
Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) were partially opened in the
second half year of 2014 respectively and the Group’s cinema
located in Zhuhai had commenced operations since May 2014,
indicating a turn of the Group’s operations to a new milestone.
Satisfactory revenues were generated to the Group from the
leasing of the Hong Kong Scene Area to Hong Kong’s and
PRC'’s film and television programs production teams and from
special and characterized theme parties and carnivals pushed in
the Studio last year to accommodate to various festivals which
appealed to more than ten thousands travelers from Hong Kong
and Guangdong province. It is expected that the completion
of the Studio and Hotel, with the promotion of various travel
packages and development of wedding photography business
in coordination, would definitely create a synergistic effect,
bringing a stable and substantial income to the Group in the
near future.

In light of the foreseeable significant return of investment from
the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project, the Group has
been striving for opportunities to further develop the regions
nearby through the proposed acquisition of parcels of land
located close to Huanshan Road, Xigiao Town (the “Land’). As
an extension of the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project,
the Group has been dedicating to infuse complexities into a
series of development on the Land by ways of (i) development
of indoor film shooting studios; (i) further development of film
shooting base; (iii) development of commercial centre; and (iv)
development and operation of hostel.
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As a matter of fact, the PRC film industry has been remaining
at a stage of rapid growth with the box office receipts reaching
RMB21.7 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$27.1 billion)
in 2013, representing an increase of 27.51% from 2012, and
the total tourism revenue in Guangdong province amounting
to RMB830.5 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1,038.1
billion) was also the highest across the PRC in 2013,
representing an increase of 12.4% from 2012. With the vigorous
support from the government towards the development of film
industry, huge demand for the Group’s Studio, cinema and
other film production ancillary facilities would be anticipated.
Looking ahead, the Group will continuously make its every
endeavor to further develop the Studio and the well-facilitated
Hotel and identify cities in the PRC for expansion of its cinema
business.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders for their continuing support.
Further, | would like to thank the Board members and the entire
workforce for their dedication and contributions. The Group
will be stepping into the phase of harvest and it will further
strengthen its core businesses and explore potential business
opportunities relating to its entertainment and culture business.

Thank you for your support.

Sin Kwok Lam
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Xiqgiao National Arts Film Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio project has a total developed
land area of 444,000 square metres and is an unique studio
which incorporates tourism and recreational facilities such as
film shooting area, theme park, hotels and performing arts
complex.

Xigiao National Arts Film Studio started soft commencement
in December 2014. It is the studio will become one of the hot
tourist spots in Guangdong province which could attract tourists
and provide them with immersive entertainment experience.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao National
Arts Film Studio and equips with the most excellent and
comprehensive ancillary facilities featuring the most realistic
and delicate details in the South China. The film shooting base
covers 374,000 square metres, including a lake of 120,000
square metres.

The shooting scenic spots have been completed and is partially
opened to production crews for lease, during the second half
of the year, several flms and TV series were produced here by
virtue of the extensive choices of the shooting base. The film
shooting base can provide diversified and extensive scenes for
crews of the Mainland China as well as overseas companies
and is expected to attract a certain amount of film production
companies all over the world due to its supreme geographical
location and multi functional services provided. Furthermore, the
Group is considering inviting famous retail organizations to set
up their retail shops in the shooting base to provide necessary
commodities to guests.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the partial opening of the film studio and further
development of shooting base, it is believed that it will become
one of the important sources of income to the Group and
bring substantial gain to the Group as enormous synergistic
effect will be created and more tourists will be attracted. In the
forth quarter of 2014, major events such as Halloween and
Christmas Celebrations being held in the film shooting base
successfully attracted number of tourists and hence take the
film studio into new heights. Going forward, the Group will keep
adding special touch to any celebrations and aim to create
memorable experiences to the tourists.

Hotels

A 5-star hotel next to the studio and facilitated from deluxe
suites to economic standard rooms to cater to tourists’ needs
has been partially constructed. The Hotel is features a modern
European design, luxurious fabrics, hues of yellow and gold, the
suites are lavishly furnished with a collection of furniture in grand
design. The Group acts ahead in providing thoughtful services
to meet the needs of the guests such as SPA, Business Centre,
Modern Swimming Pool, Shifter Kart which allow our guests to
have a splashing good time.

350 suites, would be provided and it is the one of the most
luxurious and distinctive hotels in the region. In February 2015,
the hotel obtained a high utilization rate during the Lunar
New Year. Besides, the Group would seeking opportunities to
provide comprehensive services with additional facilities to cater
tourists’ needs.

Film Production

As to the film production segment, the Group made
cooperated with New Culture (¥73{t) and Cayie Movie&video
Communications Co. Inc (lE2&4&1#F ) in the production and
distribution of Golden Brother (5 AT 7] LABS) which is captured
novel. The production of this inspiring movie was completed
and was shown in cinemas in Hong Kong and PRC in July and

December 2014 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Fiims”), an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, collaborated with its
joint venture for the development of cinema business in a large
shopping mall in a transportation hub area of Zhuhai.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than 730
seats, and had commenced its operation since May 2014 which
support further comprehensive development of the Group’s
entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

Subsequent to the completion and commencement of operation
of the film studio, and with the huge market of domestic
movies, the Group will recruit more artists with potential in the
future to cope with the demands in the vast market. Apart from
the films produced by the Group, our artists Marvel Chow, Rose
Chan, Kitson Shum will also perform and participate in different
films and TV series. Besides the Group will identify suitable
institutions for them to serve as spokerspersons and participate
in advertising photography. The Group will continue to recruit
artists with potential such as Rachel Chau, and expand the
artiste management segment, hoping that it will become one of
the income sources of the Group.

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned domestic
wedding photography chain group in the fourth quarter of 2013
to develop its new wedding photography business. Through
which, the Group will cooperate with the wedding photography
company through the leasing of the film studio with an area of
approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square metres) for a term of
12 years and the wedding photography company will invest
RMB10 million for the construction of scenic spots in different
styles such as the European, Korean and Japanese styles and
guarantee there will be at least 28,800 couples taking wedding
photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual income of this
arrangement will be no less than RMB1,152,000 starting from
2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The wedding photography business can provide stable cash
flow and visitor flow to the Group, and facilitate the hotel and
catering businesses within the film studio area. Furthermore, the
Group is negotiating with wedding service-related companies
such as famous jeweler, bakery, Chinese wedding gown
providers and wedding planner to set up their branches in the
film studio so as to provide one-stop services to couples in a
comprehensive wedding base.

FUTURE PROSPECT

According to the statistics published by State Administration
of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television, the box office
receipts in Mainland China in 2014 reached RMB29.6 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$37 billion) , representing an
increase of 25% from the previous year, indicating that the PRC
film industry remained at a stage of rapid growth in 2014. This,
combining with a series of favourable policies for the tourism
and culture industry introduced by the central government, will
build a favourable business environment for the Group’s film
and entertainment business. The Group is fully confident in the
film industry and will continue to foster its development.

As for tourism, according to a statistics published by Renmin
Wang, the total tourism revenue in Guangdong province was
RMB922.7 billion (approximately HK$1,153.38 billion) in 2014
(2013: RMB830.5 billion), total visitors attained 320M people
which was the highest across the PRC and representing an
increase of 12% compared with the previous year. The rank of
Guangdong province in China in terms of total tourism revenue
was again the first this year.

The Group believes that its new tourist substance and excellent
ancillary facilities will become a bright point of the tourism
industry in Guangdong province. The Group is confident that
the operations of the film shooting base, the hotels, tickets
sales, the cinema and the wedding photography business will
bring satisfactory return to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

During the year under review, the Group reported a turnover
of approximately HK$15.3 million, an decrease of 20% as
compared to the turnover in previous year for the continuing
operations. The turnover was mainly attributable to the business
of film studio in the PRC, while part of the revenue was
generated from the film and artiste management business.

Film production cost for the year under review decreased by
approximately HK$6.9 million as the cost for the current year’s
film production decrease.

Staff costs for the year under review increase to approximately
HK$28.7 million from approximately HK$13.6 million in previous
year. An increase of approximately HK$15.1 million in staff cost
was mainly due to the partially opened of hotel and studio.

Finance costs for the year under review increased by
approximately HK$50.8 million by reason of the interest
charged of additional borrowings, interest payment of bonds
and convertible bonds issued in 2013, after set-off with the
capitalized finance costs of construction in progress.

Gain on change in fair value of investment properties for the
year under review was approximately HK$23.7 million, which
is arising from revaluation of the land and construction of film
studio.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded
a net loss of approximately HK$148.91 million as compared
to net loss of the preceding year of approximately HK$24.22
million. During the year, the Group incurred several non-cash
flow expense items, including but not limited to, amortisation of
film products and land lease prepayments which are amounted
to HK$7.4 million and HK$2.2 million respectively.

S 5 ol
E

REREFE - ANEE S E 254 15,300,000 7%
T BREFRERLEEBN 2T THK20% o &
¥ETZRAMARPEOZHERS - EFBHUK
ARBEZRBAEEET

Bl E R B RER AN T £#)6,900,000/8 7T -
RASAFERREZEENKARD

CEFEME T AHEF 413,600,000 7T
+F+ = #928,700,000/8 T B T KA F F 4
15,100,000/8 7T * £ ZHFEJE MG B0 H
B e

[5] 8 £F 5 & Bl & R AN 35 11 49 50,800,000 4 7T+ T
RERHEEETIRERNGBEBRENMCEITIEEER
MFERR T —=FHITNELFRATRRES
BIFIS, o

REEFE  REVEIABEIOREOR
23,700,000/ 7T HRBHEH LM RBENE
fil o

HE_Z-NWF+-_A=+—BHLFE A£EH
SRS A 1B F R84 148,910,000/8 7T » M L FERIS%
SE18/F B4 24,220,000 7T - RAFE - A%
EEAERFFRSANEREE  2FEEIRR
SR M TR E B D B4 7,400,000 8 7T
%.2,200,000/8 7T °

1 1 National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited

Annual Report 2014



Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and Financial Resources it B 4 e B S DR
2014 2013
—2-IF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT T
Current assets mEVEE 52,392 39,932
Current liabilities mEaRE 402,127 278,246
Current ratio BN 2 13.0% 14.4%

Current ratio as at 31 December 2014 was 13.0% (2013:
14.4%). As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total negative
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$1.12
million (2013: position cash and cash equivalent HK$8.00
million).

Although the Group had consolidated net current liabilities
of approximately HK$349,735,000 (2013: net current assets
of approximately HK$238,314,000) and suffered loss of
HK$148,913,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$24,225,000), the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on going concern basis, by considering (1)
the major shareholder, who is also the major convertible bond
holder of the Company, having undertaken to provide financial
support to the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due and
to maintain the Group as a going concern for the next twelve
months; (2) the Group having subsequently placing bonds
amounting to HK$27,000,000 up to the end of March 2015
from placing agent; (3) the management of the Group having
been taking active steps to improve working capital of the
Group by obtaining further debt or equity financing; and (4) the
Group expecting the turnover of film studio and hotel operations
are optimistic which will generate positive cash inflows to the
Group.
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Dividend

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Rights Issue

On 5 August 2014, the company raised a total of HK$465M by
way of rights issue. This represented a good opportunity for the
company to raise additional capital to enhance its capital base
and broaden its shareholder base.

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of the Company
comprises only ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2014,

JBe B

EETEREANEZE_ZE—NWF+_A=+—H
IEFEHNRARE(ZE—=F8]) -

B i
R-ZF-—MFENARER  ARRNUEEEAEE

B £ 3£465,000,00087TT ° kBN RAIEEEINE
T IEREEAEMLBEBARRER 2 R -

BACKNE KRB R
AR #_yy_iﬂ—ﬂ-l—tﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬂ

¥R LW ARARAER B RZF
—mNEFE+=A *+—El : /\E2,888,889,483H§E

2,888,389,483 ordinary shares were issued and fully paid. BT R E B -
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
Amount Relative Amount Relative
kx-] Gisks) x| GiEES)
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FEx FHEIT
Bank Overdrafts RITBEX 8,524 0.5% = =
Loan from a related company — R A R E R 12,400 0.7% 12,400 1%
Loans from a shareholder —ZIREAER 44,240 2.7% = =
Borrowings =R 161,600 10% 45,000 3.7%
Bonds &% 79,946 5% 74,182 6%
Convertible bonds QE:dises 206,642 12.9% 367,978 30%
Finance lease obligation WS EAE 19,249 1.2% 17,898 1.5%
Total borrowings e RARRR 532,601 33% 517,458 42.2%
Equity s 1,072,474 67% 709,418 57.8%
Total capital employed FriE M & R4 %8 1,605,075 100% 1,226,876 100.0%
The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 33.2% as at 31 E(\\: —MWE+ZA=+T—HB  xEENEE
December 2014 (2013: 42.2%). If the bonds, convertible bonds L&A B332% (ZF— =4 : 42. 2%) o & MIBR
(liability component) and finance lease obligation as stated LLE’ME - AmRESF(AE )&EM‘%%H
above were to be excluded, the underlying gearing ratio was  E&¥E IR ABGBH R AE141% (T —=4F
14.1% (2013: 4.7%). The increase in the gearing ratio in current ~ 4.7%) » AFEBELR F AT ERFRFIEE =
year was due to increased loan from third parties during the ~ HFEZK »
year.
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong Kong
dollars. During the reporting period for the year ended 31
December 2014, most of the transactions, assets and liabilities
of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. During the year, since the Group had both Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi receipts and payments, the net
Renminbi exposure was not significant. The Board considers
that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk was not
significant; therefore, no hedging transaction was made during
the year.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following capital

o BLLE W i S 43 e

A1 M

AEEUABTERERES - RBEE_T—IOF
TZA=T—BLEFEREHHE - XAEEXFD
X5 BRERBBEHOUBTRAREEE - F
A AAREED FIAE T R A RBEUF 5 -
BARBRBFEL TEX - EFERR - A%
BEENELRBRETEAN - #@RFALEET
HhH e

BA TR

RZZ-—NFF+_A=+—8 A&EEEUTE

commitments: PIVES I

2014 2013
—E-ME —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT

Contracted but not provided for: EHENEES -
Construction of properties (note (a)) MR (5E(a) 3,068 32,909
Formation of a joint venture (note (b)) R & & AR (5 (b)) - 2,400
3,068 35,309

Authorised but not contracted for: BHLEBRETA

Construction of properties YRR (7 (a)

(note (a)) 79,466 158,752
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Notes:

(@) Capital commitment for construction of properties related to
capital commitment for construction of film studio and hotel in
Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was approved by the
directors of the Company according to the land lease agreements
signed between the Group and the local authority in Foshan, the
PRC, in relation to the leasing of lands for development of tourism
and related entertainment business and hotel operations.

(b)  On 17 December 2012, one of the subsidiaries of the Company,
NA Films entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV
agreement”) with an independent third party to establish a joint
venture for the development of cinema business. According to
the JV agreement, the registered capital of the joint venture to be
injected will be HK$19,000,000 in which 60% will be held by NA
Films. The amount of HK$11,400,000, representing the capital
of the joint venture to be injected by NA Films, is thus shown as
capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December 2013. In
2013, the capital of the joint venture of HK$9,000,000 has been
injected and further injected HK$ 2,400,000 in 2014 by NA Film.
No capital commitment is remained as at 31 December 2014.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

Other than those disclosed, the Group did not have any plan for
substantial investments or capital assets.

Events After the Reporting Date

On 7 January 2015 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the Placing Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant
to which the Company agreed to issue and the Placing
Agent agreed, on a best effort basis, to act as placing agent
to procure subscribers to subscribe for the Bonds up to the
maximum principal amount of HK$200,000,000 in aggregate.

Subsequent to 31 December 2014, certain other loan facilities
were secured by the share charge over the entire share capital
of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Such
other loan facilities amounted to approximately HK$200,000,000
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$110,000,000.

@  MFEROEARAETERN R EE AR
KB EEAREERR - ARIEARSE RSB
M7 R R AT L E R - RIAERIRE
ERBRREEBMBECENHEL WS
ERARFEELE -

by RZT—=—F+=—A++tH AARHEP—RH
BRBBEXEEBYF AT ALERAH
Z((EEHED RI—HERETRESLZ
AENA - BEBEAEHE  AEARIBEEAG
fit & 419,000,000 7T * HBEZ R BHFEFR
f60% - At - IEFZGETENEENRER
11,400,000 8 TER S ——F+_-_A=+—H
ENAAEENERNEE BEZER-_T—=
FRAELNATEAEARQ000,00085T ' WHR-F
— P94 — 4 & 2,400,00058 7T ° R T —PU4E
+= A=+ —BIEEAREE

o

AT KA B ol A B

FREWEIN
BETE -

AEEY EITABEAREREANE

Hedh H AR IH

RZE—AF—ALBH(RSEEE) A QA H
RERBIVESHR Bt ARFRAEET
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8 ARBEA S B &= E 200,000,000 T E
# o

R-ZT—NFE+-_A=+—B#% ETHMER
BERARABE TE2ENE QR K2 IR ANK 7
TEREIR - REHME FELE #5149200,000,000 %
7T » EA#7110,000,000 8T ELB A ©
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On 12 January 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with an independent third party for a loan of HK$4,500,000. The
bearing interest rates of the loan ranged from 10% per annum
and repayable within 6 months from the date of first drawdown.

On 22 December 2014, Elegant Motion Enterprise Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
sale and purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with Mr.
Sin (the “Vendor”) for the sale and purchase of the entire issued
share capital of Lux Unicorn Limited (the “Target Company”)
and the loans. Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell and the Company has conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of the Target
Company at a aggregate consideration of HK$400,000,000.
The special general meeting of Company to be held on 10
April 2015 to consider and approve the transaction. At the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the transaction has not yet been completed. Further details of
such are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
22 December 2014 and the investment circular of the Company
dated 23 March 2015.

Contingent Liabilities

On 31 December 2014, the Company had corporate guarantee
of HK$12,400,000 (2013: HK$12,400,000) given to a related
company to secure loans to NA Entertainment, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. No provisions for
the Company’s obligation under the guarantee contract has
been made as the Directors considered that the Company has
sufficient cash resources to repay the loans when they fall due
and it is not probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee contract.

According to the land lease agreements signed between the
Group and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation
to the leasing of lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations, the Group shall
invest no less than RMB600 million for the projects or the
Group is liable to pay RMB8 million as damages to the local
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authority. The completion of constructions and commencement
of operations of the projects shall be within three and four years
respectively from the signing of the lease agreements. The
directors of the Company are in the opinion that the conditions
set out in the leasing agreements could be achieved and no
provisions for liability is necessary.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 443 (2013:
147) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performances,
experiences and the prevailing industry practices. In addition
to basic salaries and mandatory provident fund, staff benefits
including medical coverage scheme and share options are
offered.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its
employees or disruption to its operation due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and
retention of experienced staff. The Directors believe that the
Group has a good working relationship with its employees.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Miss Law Po Yee, aged 35, was appointed as the Vice
Chairperson of the Board on 26 October 2010, as an Executive
Director of the Company on 5 August 2010 and as Chief
Executive Officer and compliance officer of the Company on 9
May 2011. Miss Law has extensive experience in entertainment,
artiste management and film production industries. Miss Law
also has years of banking experience, specializing in risk
management. Miss Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin.

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, aged 30, joined the Group in January
2010. Mr. Chow holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration with previous experiences in media and financial
industries. Mr. Chow was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company on 25 March 2011.

Miss Sin Ho Yee, aged 30, joined the Group in March 2011.
Miss Sin obtained a diploma of Communication from the
Melbourne Institute of Business and Technology. Miss Sin was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 25 March
2011.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, aged 57, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company on
31 May 2010. Mr. Sin was re-designated from an Executive
Director to a Non-executive Director in October 2010. Mr. Sin
has over 20 years’ banking experience in various departments
including Internal Audit, Finance, Risk Management and
Business. Mr. Sin is an associate member of the Chartered
Institute of Banker, and he holds a master degree in Business
Administration from Oklahoma City University, USA, a certified
diploma in Accounting and Finance from the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a graduate diploma in Law
Course from City University, London, UK and a bachelor of
Laws (LL.B.) from Manchester Metropolitan University. Mr. Sin
is also the Chairman and an Executive Director of First Credit
Finance Group Limited (stock code: 8215).
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Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, aged 44, worked for Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited (“Cathay Pacific”) during the period from
1996 to 1998. After his resignation from Cathay Pacific, Mr.
Li continued his education in Boston and started food and
beverage business and plastic resin trading business in the
United States of America. In 2000, Mr. Li returned to Hong
Kong and worked in The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Federal Express Pacific Inc. and Midland
Holdings Limited. Mr. Li is a current holder of Estate Agents
Licence (Individual) and a Certified Paralegal in Institute of
Paralegals. Mr. Li was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in May 2009 and re-designated to a Non-executive
Director of the Company in May 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, aged 55, has been in the legal
field for over 20 years. Mr. Chan received his legal education
in England where he was awarded the Postgraduate Diploma
in Laws (the Legal Practice Course) from the University of
Wolverhampton after he had obtained the law degree from
the University of London. Apart from his law degree, he also
obtained a bachelor degree in Chinese literature and history.
Before he commenced his practice, Mr. Chan had worked with
the Insolvency and Criminal Litigation Sections of the Legal
Aid Department for 12 years. As for the public service, Mr.
Chan was an honorary chairman and legal adviser of the Urban
Services Staff Association (Tsuen Wan Welfare Section). Mr.
Chan is a general practice lawyer and a committee member of
Hong Kong Legal Professionals Association. Mr. Chan is also
an Independent Non-executive director of Sun International
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8029). Mr. Chan was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in May
2009.
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Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, aged 58, holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Commerce and is a practicing Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Chui was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of Tse Sui Luen
Jewellery (International) Limited (Stock Code: 417), Wing Lee
Property Investment Limited (Stock Code: 864) and Addchance
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344) on 22 December 2014,
and was an Independent Non-executive Director of 21 Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1003) until his resignation in September
2011. Mr. Chui was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2009. He is now
the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol. Mr.
Chui is a member of the Road Safety Campaign Committee of
the Road Safety Council and is also a director of a number of
private companies and association.

Prof. WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, B.B.S., J.P., aged 67,
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in 2001 and is currently the chairman of Audit
Committee and members of Disclosure Committee, Investment
Advisory Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Prof. Wong is a Practising Certified
Public Accountant. He is the managing practising director of
Patrick Wong CPA Limited and has over 30 years experience
in the accountancy profession. Prof. Wong obtained a Doctor
of Philosophy Degree in Business, and was awarded a Badge
of Honour in 1993 by the Queen of England. Prof. Wong has
been appointed as a Justice of the Peace since 1998 and
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (B.B.S.) in 2010 by The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Prof. Wong is currently an Independent Non-executive Director
of China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd., C C
Land Holdings Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited,
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company
Limited (formerly Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company
Limited), Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, Sino Oil and Gas
Holdings Limited, Winox Holdings Limited, Excel Development
(Holdings) Limited and BAIC Motor Corporation Limited, all are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 60, has more than 30 years’ experience
in auditing, accounting and secretarial services. Mr. Li holds
a bachelor degree of social sciences (with honours) in the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Li is also a fellow member of
The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Li
is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a managing director of
Arthur Li, Yau & Lee C.P.A. Limited. Mr. Li is a director of
Cheong Yip Corporate Services Limited, which is principally
engaged in corporate service related business. Mr. Li is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Henry Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 00859) and Tysan Holdings Limited (stock
code: 00687), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Immediately prior to his appointment as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2014, Mr. Li was an Independent Non-executive Director of
First Credit Finance Group Limited whose shares are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8215) until his
resignation on May 2014.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting
the directors’ report together with the audited financial
statements of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group include film production and
distribution, the provision of management services to artistes,
and operations of film studio and hotels.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group are set out in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 51 to 52.

No dividend was paid during the year. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and
equity of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 203.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 16 and note 17, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2014, the Company has approximately

HK$540.84 million reserves available for distribution to
shareholders (2013: approximately HK$16 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer:
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, Miss Law Po Yee and Mr. Li Kit Chee shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All other directors continue
in office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors
of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year. The service contract is
terminable from either party by serving a written notice to the
other of not less than one calendar month. Each Executive
Director and Non-executive Director is entitled to a basic salary
and remuneration subject to an annual revision by the Board.

Details of the directors’ fees or emolument payable to Directors
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company has been appointed for a term of one year with
specific terms as stated in the letter of appointment. The letter
of appointment is terminable from either party by serving a
written notice to the other of not less than one calendar month.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Board considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange, were as follows:
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1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company 1. RAARAFBRBZHE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Interest in share capital of
controlled the Company
Capacity/Nature Number of corporation ERDT
Name of Directors of interest shares REEH Total  BETRAZ
Bsps 5/ BEME ki #E DRZER @t BREAL
@  The Company
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each)
ARE) (BREE B LEk)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note 1) Beneficial owner 683,473,000 - 683,473,000 23.66%
AT (W 1) EREBA
Interest of spouse 23,352,000 - 23,352,000 0.81%
RBESR
Miss Law Po Yee (Note 2) Beneficial owner 23,352,000 - 23,352,000 0.81%
EBR/MA(ME2) ERBAA
Interest of spouse 683,473,000 = 683,473,000 23.66%
REER
Note 1: Mr. Sin and Miss Law beneficially owned 706,825,000 BIET R A RE/DNMAE =S 706,825,000 AR
Shares, representing approximately 24.47% of the AR BB BEITRR AL 24.47%  BRIEFEFH K
issued share capital of the Company. By virtue of B&0 - BB ORE & 2 BLE) AR /R AL
SFO, Miss Law, the spouse of Mr. Sin, was deemed EREREEZTERNO PR R -
to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Sin was
interested.

Note 2: Miss Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin and is deemed to be Misk2 : B/ NEARKSEZES  BREKRARNALERE

interested in the Shares in which Mr. Sin is deemed or BERBAERIIRR AR EERENRNDTHES
taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO. WS o

ISR LB AR AR
—2-mEER
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Rights to acquire shares in the Company 2. WEEARA BB W RER]
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme i BAABIHRE R A2
Number of share options*
EREHR"
Outstanding
asat
As at 31 December
Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2014
price  Exercisable 2014 during during during M-Z-DE
Details of grantees Date of grant per share*  period RZZ-BE the year theyear  theyear T=A=1-H
RRAFE RiEBH BRTEE*  RES -B-B  FARY  ERTR ERAX BR{TE
(HKS)
A7)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Director) 29 September 2010 289 29 September 2010 to 7,964,160 - - - 7,964,160
RENEE(E5) “F-TENA-tNA 2 September 2020
ZE-TENAZTNRE
ZE-EFNACH
Miss Law Po Yee (Director) 29 September 2010 289 29 September 2010 to 3,982,080 - - - 3,962,080
BER\E(ES) “E-ZENAZTNA 2 September 2020
“E-TEAA-HAAE
ZE-EFNACR
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Director] 29 September 2010 289 29 September 2010 to 24,888 - - - 24,888
ARALE(ES) “E-SEAA-TAR 2 September 2020
ZE-TENAZTNRE
ZE-EFAACR
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim 20 May 2010 338 20May 201010 25,065 - - - 25,065
(Director I L 19 May 2020
itk (8%) “3-ZER[-TRE
“EC2FRATAR
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 13 May 2010 366 13May2010to 33,292 - - - 33292
(Director S 12 May 2020
ETCEE(22) “3-ZER[THE
ZECRFRATCIA
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor 20 May 2010 338 20May2010to 33,420 - - - 33420
(Director) L 19 May 2020
BAU%E (B2) “T-ZERFCTRE
“TCEERATAR
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, 20 May 2010 338 20May2010t0 33420 - - - 33,420
Patrick (Director) I 0 19 May 2020
EREYR(22) Z2-ZERACTRE
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New Share Option Scheme i FERRE R #
Number of share options*
FREHE"
Outstanding
asat
Asat 31 December
Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2014
price  Exercisable 2014 during during during R-Z-ME
Details of grantees Date of grant pershare*  period RZE-BF the year theyear  theyear T=A=1-H
REARE RHAH ERGRE* HREE -B-B  ERRY  ERTR ERAX HRITE
(HKS)
(%)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Director) 28 March 2011 762 28March 201210 3,360,403 = = = 3,360,403
REMEE(E%) Z2——%=A=t/\R 27 March 2021
-z _ﬁ R=tN\RZ
Z2-HSA-t4A
31 March 2012 559 31March 201210 134,450 - - - 134,450
ZE-CfZR=t-H 30 March 2017
ZE-CF-A=t-RE
“2-+F-A=1A
Miss Law Po Yee (Director) 28 March 2011 762 28March 201210 3,360,403 - - - 3,360,403
BEME(ES) “F—5=A=tNR 27 March 2021
-z ﬁ RZTN\BE
i S 359y Bl
31 March 2012 559 31March2012to 134,450 - - - 134,450
“E-Cf=R=t-H 30 March 2017
ZT-CE-f=t-RE
“E-t¥=A=1A
Mr, Chow Kai Weng 28 March 2011 762 28March 201210 58,807 - - - 58,807
(Director) ZE——4§=A=t\A 27 March 2021
BRIREE(EE) % _i RZTN\BE
k- E ﬂ ttH
31 March 2012 559 31March 2012 67,225 = = - 67,225
“2-—#-A=t-H 30 March 2017
ZE-CFSA=T-RE
“E-+#¥=A=1A

BRI EEBRAF

—2-mEER




Directors’ Report
HR WG E

29

il.

New Share Option Scheme (Continued) ii.  FERRER# (&)
Number of share options*
EREHE
Outstanding
as at
Asat 31 December
Exercise 1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2014
price  Exercisable 2014 during during  during W=F-MF
Details of grantees Date of grant pershare*  period WZZ2-BE  theyear  theyear theyear T=A=1-8
RRAFE RiEBH ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ; TR -f-B  ERRE  EROE FRAM BR{TE
(HKS)
(#7)
Miss Sin Ho Yee (Director) 28 March 2011 762 28March 201210 1,344,161 S = S 1,344,161
RARE(EE) “3—%=A-1+/\R 27 March 2021
ZE-ZEZAZ+N\RZ
B S
31 March 2012 559 31March2012to 50419 - - - 50419
“2-F=A=1-H 30 March 2017
“E-CEZAZ+-HE
S e
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim 28 March 2011 762 28March 201210 8,401 - - - 8,401
(Director) “3—F=A-1NA 27 March 2021
SEERE(E3) ikt S s IS
ZE-FZA-t4R
31 March 2012 559 31March2012to 16,806 - - - 16,806
“F-CEZR=t-R 30 March 2017
“E-ZE-f=1-HZE
“5-t¥=A=1H
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 28 March 2011 762 28March2012to 33,604 - - - 33,604
(Director “E—£-f-1)\H 27 March 2021
EFCRE(ES) “F-“#=ZA-+N\RZ
ZE-F=AZtA
31 March 2012 559 31 March 201210 67,225 = = = 67,225
“E-Tf=B=1-H 30 March 2017
“E-CE-ACT-HE
ZT-t+E=f=+H
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, 28 March 2011 762 28March2012t0 33,604 - - - 38,604
Trevor (Director) “2——F=A-1/A 27 March 2021
BRI (E3) “T-"E-A-\RZ
ZEC-EZRCT4R
31 March 2012 559 31March2012to 67,225 - - - 67,225
ZZ--f=f=1-H 30 March 2017
“2-ZFZf=1-HE
“E-+¥=A=1A
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, 28 March 2011 762 28March 201210 33,604 S S S 33,604
Patrick (Director) “E—£Zf-1)\H 27 March 2021
EREAR (B2) “2-FZA-tN\RE
B S R
31 March 2012 559 3t March2012to 67,225 - - - 67,225
“3-"F=R=1-H 30 March 2017
“E-CEZAZT-HE
B e
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief
Executive or their associates had, as at 31 December 2014,
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or had otherwise been
notified to the Company were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company
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HRFgWREE

BREXHEEN R-T—HF+_A=+—
B REF IZTBABRREZAZHMEA
BENAR B RETAREEE (& RESF R
BEHRGIFEXVER) ZERRD - HBEERM HEFHFF
BREEAREESZMNPEGRIEXVEETRES
DR RERMEARRA LR (B3 Ll
TRIBZ S &5 R GROHRSOE E R B
BZREIAR) » IREFH KB &P 352
FRREBBLRAAERMAZEDEIORE - X
RIBRIZER E AR RIE 546 1R EF 5.67 R ZHTE
ARG AR LB ERBAR

B Bt N i P A B A B P A 2
MESE IR

R-ZFB—=F+-_A=1+—8 REARFZR
EFFHAEGRIIEXVEEIBIRREFELZEAC
MATRCE: - AARRCEME - THALIEE
(BRARREFRITHRARIN) RARR 2B K
MERAR O P AR IOAR

L AR F A Z 55

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital of

No. of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held HARDATE BT
MR 51 BFEROGHE BAZBAOT DL
Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 563,547,600 19.51%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of the
Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company conditionally
adopted and approved Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
principal terms of which are set out in Appendix IV to the
prospectus of the Company dated 9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company dated 29 September 2010, a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
terminated. The principal terms of New Share Option Scheme
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 6 September
2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2014, the share options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 12,096,325 shares of the Company
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme were
outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2014 are set out as follows:

B B - )

BEARFE-—RER_ZZ_F+A-+_H
ZEMARZBR  ARFA G RARIEETR
RRABBIREERET S - BENEEEFIENA
HR-ZZ_F+ANAZARERREIZMNE
e e

REARAR-_F-ZFFNA-THERITZK
REFRIAE BB RESR - — BB
2 (B ERT 81 ) BRa - h &R ARBR
BARERT Bl AR AL - FTRERUERT 81 2 T R IRFH
RARBR_F—FTFNANABELZBEA -

TR B B AR S -

R-E—NE+-_A=+—8 REFIXAH
BireEREASEEMARBRBEARAEG R
12,096,325 I & 17 2 B AR RE M R ETTE - B E
E-—NF+—A=+—BHIEZ2EH X ABREE
IRESTEIFIBAT -

Number of share options*
EREHE
Outstanding
Exercise Asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
price 1 January during during during 31 December
Category of Participants per share* Date of grant 2014 the year the year the year 2014
RZZ-BF
RZZ-ME TZB=t-A
SEAEH ERGRE" RiEAH -A-A EREL ERfif EREH BARITR
(HKS)
(#7)
Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 33,292 - - - 33292
P “E2-ZFRAT=A
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 91,905 - - - 91,905
EES “E-2FRA-TH
Directors 289 29 September 2010 11,971,128 - - - 191,128
gz ZE-RFAACTAR
Total 12,096,325 - - - 120%32%
g
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New Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2014, the share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 8,838,012 shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme were outstanding.
The details of the New Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2014 are set out as follows:

Directors’ Report
HRFgWREE

T P - 3

R-IE—WF+-A=+—8  REFBERET
R BT RBARAA 8,838,012 Mt 2 BAX
BEAETE BE_T-WNF+_-_A=1+—H
ZATRERERT BB

Number of share options*
BREHE
Outstanding
Exercise Asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
price 1 January during during during 31 December
Category of Participants per share* Date of grant 2014 the year the year the year 2014
R=%-BF
R-E-mE t-A=t-A
SEAER BRAEE" RiLAH -A-A EREL ERfifE EREH WA
(HKS)
(1)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 8,282,987 - - - 8,232,987
S “5—%ZA-1)\R
Directors 559 31 March 2012 605,025 - - - 605,025
£% “F--—F=f=1-H
Total 8,838,012 - - - 8,838,012
ag
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS HRRGHZ R

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Directors of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Before 30 November 2000, the Group did not contribute to
any retirement benefit scheme for either its employees or the
Directors in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
the Group had joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority. The Group’s employees in Hong Kong
are required to join the scheme. The Group has followed the
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income.

RELRFERNEMAER  AARESFLEELAR
AIREEMMNEARMII L ZERENTHEER
BEREEZEAER -

3B U A B
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I RAEEEEEE R R A R AR HI 2 05 i
AFEERAHE - AREREFBZEEAS BZG
g ARBECETREZERRRE BEER
EBAREAKRAZ 5% EHHRK -
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The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in social
insurance schemes (including retirement benefit scheme,
medical insurance scheme and unemployment benefit scheme)
operated by the relevant local government authorities. The
Group is required to make contribution to the social insurance
schemes on behalf of employees who are registered permanent
residents in the PRC. The insurance premium is borne by the
Group and the employees on a specified proportion of the
employees’ salaries laid down under the relevant PRC law.

During the year, the employer’s contributions to the retirement
benefit scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income amounted to approximately
HK$3,791,000 (2013: HK$217,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Other than convertible bonds amounting to HK$235.01
million which were early redeemed during the year, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in a business which competes or may compete with
the business of the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 27.24% of the Group’s turnover for the year. The
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 8.3% of
its turnover.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 70% of the Group’s purchases for the year. The
Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 51.6% of
its purchases.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their respective
associates nor shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers at any time during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all of the code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014. Please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 36 to 47 for details.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in 2002
which now comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin
Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times to
review the Company’s annual reports and financial statements,
interim reports and quarterly reports and discuss with the
management over issues relating to auditing, internal control
and financial reporting. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 36
to 47 for details.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (“HLB”) who will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

During the year, HLB have been appointed as the auditors
of the Company with effect from 1 December 2014 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of BDO Limited (“BDO”)
which took effect from 1 December 2014. The consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 were audited by BDO. BDO has
confirmed in its letter of resignation dated 1 December 2014
that there are no matters connected with its resignation that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders. Save
for the above, there has been no other change in the auditors of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Law Po Yee
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the
year ended 31 December 2014. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices and procedures with an aim of
maximizing the Shareholders’ interests as well as to enhancing
the stakeholders’ transparency and accountability. In this
respect, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Company
has complied with all code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
t0 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code of Conduct”).

Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors of the
Company and each of them has confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the
Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31 December
2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation of the Board

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors which represents a mixture of experts
specializing in management, law, accounts and finance. All
Directors possess comprehensive qualifications and experience
as well as exposure to diversified industries which are crucial to
the growth of the Group.
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The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s business
strategies, monitoring the financial performance and internal
controls of the Group’s operations, and supervising the
management to ensure thorough implementation of the Group’s
policies and effective performance of their duties. It is also
responsible for collectively approving the appointment, removal
or reappointment of Board members and auditors and the
adoption of any changes in accounting policies and practices,
and reviewing the remuneration of the Directors. Independent
judgments and advices are effectively exercised by the Board
to the management of the Company and objective decisions
are made by the Board to the best interests of the Company
and all Shareholders. Day-to-day operations of the Company
and implementation of business strategies are delegated to the
management with department heads responsible for different
aspects of the business.

Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet at least four times each year on
a quarterly basis to discuss the Group’s business development,
operations and financial performance. Notice is given to all
Directors at least 14 days in advance for all regular Board
meetings. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any directors
and their associates who are considered to have conflict of
interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or
issues to be discussed in the Board meetings shall abstain from
voting on the relevant resolutions and are not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings.

A formal agenda is addressed to all Directors before each
Board meeting. To enable the Directors to make informed
decisions, Board papers together with all appropriate and
relevant materials and information in relation to the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meeting are sent to
all Directors. Proper minutes of Board meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary of the Company and are readily available
for inspection by any Director upon request.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, REZ_FT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE T&E
remuneration committee meetings, audit committee meetings, SHHFEFEeH FHNZEesE  FZZE
nomination committee meetings and general meetings during E 8% REZEESZ LRI 28K
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the following W

table:
Remuneration Audit Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
s EzgeR  LHzEceR ENZE8E  REZEEEE BRAg
Nurber of meetings held EOEEN 4 1 4 1 1
Number of mestings attended/Number of mestings held £ E &2 R8/ 278208
Executive Directors YhES
Law Po Yee (Vice Chaierson) BER(AZE) 44 - - - 1
Chow Kai Weng 563 44 - - - 11
Sin Ho Yee b 1 44 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
SinKwok Lam (Chairman) HEN(ZE) 34 - - 1/ 11
Li Sin Hung Maxim S 44 - - - 1
Lam Kok Hing Wilfred (Vice Chairman) WER(BFR)

- refired on 11 July 2014 -KZE-BELHT-AEF - - - 1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkdTES
Chan Tin Lup Trevor RAU 44 1 44 1 11
Chui Chi Yun Robert A 414 1M 4/4 - n
Wong Lung Tak Patrick RHEE 44 11 44 1 11
Li Kit Chee Fke

— appointed on 1 June 2014 -RoE-RENA-AEEL U n 2/4 1 =

Biographical details of each of the Directors are set out inthe SEFHERFEHNAFMEIBEER21 8
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” from page 18  HJ [EE/ERE] —&7 o
to 21 of this annual report.
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The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and
5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules that the Board includes at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors, which represents
at least one-third of the Board; and at least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors who has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. To the best knowledge of the Board,
there is no financial, business and family relationships among
Board members except that Miss Law Po Yee is the spouse
of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Miss Sin Ho Yee is the daughter
of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam. The Company has also received, from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held separately by two different individuals to ensure a
clear division between their respective independence and
accountability and to maintain a balance of power and
authority. The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam,
is responsible for formulating the long-term strategies of the
Company and overseeing its overall business development.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Miss Law Po Yee,
focuses on implementing the Company’s business strategies
and policies approved and delegated by the Board and
overseeing the Company’s day-to-day operations.

Non-executive Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. Each of the existing Non-executive Directors has
been appointed by the Company for a specific term of one year
and are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Directors’ training is an ongoing process and all Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and changes in the business and market
environment in which the Group operates to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remain
informed and relevant, Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and are
required to provide the Company with his annual training record.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, all Directors have
participated in the continuous professional developments in
relation to regulatory updates, duties and responsibilities of
the Directors and the business of the Group in the following
manner:

Name of Directors

o S8k g

EHRFAE SRR

EERERTEI 2RESFERNEREE
LEEHENSEHER  URBEAEEZEN
EBRTIBREE( - URBEBITERAIER
LR RARESIRER THBE MET -

REREEBESHREAEFTSIFHARB RAERMEN
RE - RIBABEESE2MEMEZIIRE - B
AEARBXN  AEESEHASFAARRFER
HWEIEIECE -

HE-_Z-—NF+-_A=+—BHLFE 28BS
EHEL2HREHEETEZENER  EF2 2B
BHEBERAREEB HEZXRRTEE &
Bor

Types of Training

EEHA EE R
Executive Directors BITES
Law Po Yee (Vice Chairperson) BRET(BFE) A/B
Chow Kai Weng IEIEES A/B
Sin Ho Yee byl A/B
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) BB (/) A/B
Li Sin Hung Maxim et A/B
Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred (Vice Chairman) MBI (B )

— retired on 11 July 2014 -R-F-—WEFELH+—HRE A/B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Chan Tin Lup Trevor (S NvA A/B
Chui Chi Yun Robert EEC A/B
Wong Lung Tak Patrick =EEfE A/B
Li Kit Chee P2

— appointed on 1 June 2014 - R-F—UFNH—HEZE A/B

A Attending internal briefing session in relating to corporate
governance
B: Reading materials in relation to regulatory update
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for the appointment of any potential
new directors and the nomination of directors for re-election by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
(the “Bye-laws”), the Directors shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the
existing Board, whom is subject to retirement and re-election at
the first AGM after his appointment.

All Executive Directors and non-executive Directors are engaged
on service contracts with the Company for a term of one year.
The Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors for a term of one year
subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

With pursuant to Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-laws, at
each AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Such retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises four Independent
Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert,
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and
Mr. Li Kit Chee. Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include: (i) reviewing and recommending to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of the Company and to
establish a formal and transparent procedure for developing
such remuneration policy; (ii) reviewing and determining the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments and, (iii) ensuring that none of
the Directors or their associates will involve in deciding his own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the attendance record of these
meetings is set out in the paragraph headlined “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” under the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 37 to 39 of
this annual report.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established in 2002. The Audit Committee currently
comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong
Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert. The Company
has complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the
Audit Committee comprises a minimum of three Non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom is an Independent Non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise; and
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly (i) to
review the financial information of the Group such as annual
and quarterly results prior to making recommendations to the
Board for approval; (i) to review and monitor financial reporting
principles and practices and internal control procedures of the
Group; and (jii) to recommend to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment or removal of external auditors.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2014 and the attendance record of these meetings
is set out in the paragraph headlined “Board and Committees
Meetings and Attendance” under the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 37 to 39 of this annual report.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in 2012. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises one Non-executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Sin Kwok
Lam, Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and
Mr Li Kit Chee. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, a Non-executive Director.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are mainly
(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the identification of
suitable, qualified individuals for selection and appointment
as Directors; (ii) to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment or re-designation of, and succession planning for,
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the attendance record of these
meetings is set out in the paragraph headlined “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” under the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 37 to 39 of
this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions performed by the Board
of Directors include: (i) formulating and reviewing the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (i) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management; (iii)
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company in compliance with the relevant laws and regulatory
requirements; and (iv) reviewing the compliance with the Code
of Corporate Governance by the Company and the disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting
policies and standards, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding
its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 48 to 50 of
this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Group has engaged an external service provider as its
Company Secretary. The external service provider can contact
the Company’s Executive Director, Mr. Chow Kai Weng for any
company secretarial affairs.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit for the financial year ended
31 December 2014 provided by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, the external auditors of the Company, amounted to
HK$463,000. In addition, an approximately HK$55,000 was
charged for non-audit services.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and effective internal control system of the Company to
safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and the Company’s
assets. In order to maintain a sound internal control system,
the Company has adopted and maintained stringent internal
control procedures. The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance against misappropriate use of the
Group’s assets and to manage the Group’s operational system
in an efficient manner.

The Company regularly evaluates the internal control procedures
to assess its effectiveness and prevent and detect any
procedural failure or deficiency of the internal control system. All
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls functions
of the Company are also reviewed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no any changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2014.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all Shareholders which enables
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision and to have better understanding on the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Board also believes
that it is vital for developing and maintaining continuing investor
relations with the Company’s potential and existing investors.
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The Company maintains a website at “www.nationalarts.hk”
as a communication platform with Shareholders and investors,
where the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Board considers general meetings of the Company as an
important channel for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board and will endeavor to be available at the meetings to
answer any questions raised by Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure Shareholders’
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogues
with Shareholders and encourage their participation in the
AGM or other general meetings. Notice of meeting containing
agenda, proposed resolutions and postal voting form are sent to
registered Shareholders by post. All registered Shareholders are
entitled to attend annual and extraordinary general meetings,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting (“SGM”) to be called by the Board, provided
that such requisition properly states the object(s) of the meeting,
be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary,
and be verified with and confirmed by the Company’s share
registrar that such requisition is proper and in order.
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The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) or
any of them representing more than one-half of their total voting
rights may do so, but any SGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the date of deposit of the
requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner as if the meeting was convened
by the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of registered Shareholders holding not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 registered Shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (i) provide Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting with
notice of any resolution(s) which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (ii) circulate to
Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meetings
any statement(s) in not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolutions or other
businesses to be dealt with at that meeting. A requisition
signed by all the Requisitionist(s) with a sum sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses shall be deposited at the
registered office of the Company not less than six weeks in
case of a requisition requiring a notice of resolution(s) or not
less than one week in the case of any other requisitions before
the meeting. If an AGM is called for on a date six weeks or less
after the deposit of such requisition, such requisition, though
not deposited within the required time period, shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purpose thereof.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders’ enquiries regarding their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other enquiries from Shareholders
can be directed to the Company whose contact details are
shown on page 4 of this Annual Report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL ARTS
ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(originally incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 202, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act of Bermuda, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— W4+ H=1—H IL4EE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
b FExT FET
Revenue WA 7 15,260 19,094
Other income EAbUA 7 7,780 3,941
Other losses and gains HAthE51E Rk s 7 (27,556) 1,395
Cost of film production B EUERA (7,400) (14,350)
Staff costs BIKA 10 (28,672) (18,612)
Depreciation of property, Y% - BB REETE
plant and equipment 10 (2,517) (1,974)
Amortisation of land lease jEA - ish=g: £ic|
prepayments 10 (2,245) (2,245)
Other operating expenses HEmgLEER (47,504) (16,484)
Finance costs BB KA 9 (71,502) (20,692)
Change in fair value of investment  R&EWE N EEEF)
properties 23,698 26,173
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR MK - 1,520
Share of loss of a joint venture DME—EA LD EEE (2,331) (448)
Loss before tax BRETISELAT (E51R) (142,989) (17,682)
Income tax expense FriSif X 11 (5,924) (6,543)
Loss for the year TEEEE 10 (148,913) (24,225)
Other comprehensive income/ Eft2EIA ~(B%)
(expense)
Items that will not be TEEIBE=IEE
reclassified to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of properties ~ EfH#{EE AYWEMNUE
held for own use 112,420 339,409
Income tax relating to gain on FHERFHEERYE
revaluation of properties held KU TS HR
for own use (28,105) (84,853)
Items that may be reclassified H#ZJFEESEE=IEE
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation % /G 5N ES I R EAE
of financial statements of EEREN Z5E
foreign operations (10,441) 9,338
Other comprehensive income  ARFEEHMZEWA -
for the year, net of income tax  HIERFTEH 73,874 263,894
Total comprehensive AEER2E(BEX) WA
(expense)/income for the year  #2 %8 (75,039) 239,669
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &E _F— 4+ H=+—H I

2014 2013
—E-F —ZE—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtEE FHERx FHIT

Loss for the year attributable to: FE{GZ&FEEEE :
Owners of the Company FiN/NSIEZ 2N 12 (148,913) (20,614)
Non-controlling interests IR e - (3,611)

(148,913) (04,225)
Total comprehensive EE2m )/
(expense)/income A 4858
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEF DN (75,039) 240,384
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS - (719)
(75,039) 239,669
(Restated)
(FEES)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted HA K #E 13 (HK14.16 cents i#1ll) (HK3.32 cents 711ll)
B E IR L R E AR AR

—2-mEER




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2014 A =ZF—M4E+"H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
FtEE FET FAET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BRE R E 16 1,595,981 663,539
Investment properties HEME 17 - 676,576
Land lease prepayments i E 18 80,262 82,507
Goodwill Bk 20 - -
Investment in a joint venture BETERE 21 8,621 8,552
Other receivables H fib 508 26 98,386 100,947
1,783,250 1,532,121
Current assets MENEE
Film products 5 22 12,543 7,388
Film production in progress ERER 23 - 8,005
Trade receivables FEINE 5 5RI8 24 765 3,683
Inventories A 25 4,103 1,164
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - &S
other receivables Ko E At e kIR 26 27,575 11,685
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTLEH 27 7,406 8,007
52,392 39,932
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB S50 28 158 45
Other payables and accruals HAbFEN FRIE R ERTER 29 67,702 216,454
Bank overdrafts RITEX 8,524 =
Loan from a related company —MREE A RN ER 30 12,400 12,400
Loans from a shareholder —ZREHNER 31 44,240 =
Borrowings P 33 116,600 45,000
Finance lease obligation B I E AR 34 3,224 1,396
Bonds &% 35 79,946 -
Convertible bonds AT AR E 5 36 66,382 =
Provision for income tax FTiS T 2,951 2,951
402,127 278,246
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (349,735) (238,314)
Total assets less current EEHABRRBAR
liabilities 1,433,515 1,293,807
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2014 A =ZF—P4E+_H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIsE FHE T FAETT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings B 33 45,000 -
Bonds B 35 - 74,182
Convertible bonds AR ES 36 140,260 367,978
Finance lease obligation B IS TR B IR 34 16,025 16,502
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 37 159,756 125,727
361,041 584,389
Net assets EEFE 1,072,474 709,418
Capital and reserves EARREE
Equity attributable to the AATHEE AELER
owners of the Company
Share capital &N 38 288,839 41,262
Reserves & 783,635 668,156
Total equity fERBE 1,072,474 709,418

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 27 March 2015 and are

HEMBBRREHESFEN_-F

—RF=H

“tEARERRENE YA THESFKKRE

signed on its behalf by: BGEE:
Law Po Yee Sin Kwok Lam
EER BB AR
Director Director
EZE EZE

EE I EMARAF
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Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2014 *20144:12 A 31 H

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MIEE FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB REE 16 45 102
Investments in subsidiaries NP EENEIE T 19 882 882
927 984
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposit and FENFUE ek
other receivables H fib U R IE 26 807 718
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEMHT B A FI5RIE 32 1,410,928 1,110,501
Cash and bank balances HE RIRTTEEH 27 3,281 1,341
1,415,016 1,112,560
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HAb N FRIE R ERTE R 29 856 3,042
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI EPNGIE e 32 339 349
Loans from a shareholder — BRI E K 31 44,240 =
Borrowings EPET 33 108,100 45,000
Bonds (e 35 79,946 -
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 36 66,382 =
299,863 48,391
Net current assets REEEFE 1,115,153 1,064,169
Total assets less current BEABERRBARS
liabilities 1,116,080 1,065,153
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Borrowings BE 33 18,600 -
Bonds (EEa 35 - 74,182
Convertible bonds AR ES 36 140,260 367,978
158,860 442,160
Net assets BEEFE 957,220 622,993
Capital and reserves ERRf#HE
Equity attributable to owners VNN ZEN
of the Company FEfh iR
Share capital f&N 38 288,839 41,262
Reserves (Gt 668,381 581,731
Total equity R 957,220 622,993
Law Po Yee Sin Kwok Lam
Director Director
o X
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o E) R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # £ =% —P4E+H=+—HIL4ERE

Attributable fo owners of the Company

KRRERNELES
Retained Attributable
Properties Share Convertile gamings fonon-
Share Share Special  Contrbuted ~ revaluafion  Translation opfon  bondequty  Wamant (Accumulated contaling
ot premium Tesene surplus Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesenve Teserve losses) ~ Subfotdl  interests Tota
neak BRE TREE  mRER GEE/ 0 B
Re  BhEE  RARE  EEER fif  AEEE R EERE #h (ZiEE) i EEEL  EREE

HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HK$O00 HK$’HOOO HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HK$O00
Thr  TRn  TEr  Thn  TEr TR TEn T TR T TEn T TEm

Balance at 1 January 2013 WoE-=%

-A-RMER 405 42074 1,000 78791 - 1177 26,229 - - 11,061 571,494 22231 793815
Issue of convertblebonds (note 36) 77T A%

(%) - - - - - - - 18518 - - 158 - 18518

Transaction costs of equty TEREREEN

comporent ofoomvertblebonds AR B

[note 35) (Hit3) - - - - 5 S S 500 o o {300) = (300
Shareissued upon conversonof - ST ERER

convetbl bond (ote 38 3) ARG

() 1] 7319 - - - - - (65) - - 7565 = 7365
Redempton of convertble bonds ~~ BE A%
note 30 (K3) - - - - - - - (1209 - - (1289 - (128
Issue ofwanants note 33 MmEROnY) - - - - - - - - 6,831 = 6,831 = 6,831
Transaction costs of ssuanceof RS
varants 290 - - - - - - - 5 (13 5 (13 = 3
Acquition of on-contrling Wigsihies
intersts note 47 (Hizta) - - - - - - - - - BI08Y (3108 Q21608 (452689)
Sharessue expanses UEH - 261) = = s = = = = = (261) = 261)
Trnscton wih oners SEENEIRE 00 7,058 - - - - - 146 630 (31083 (102460 (21808 [Bo4068)
Loss for the year FERER - - - - - - - - - el posty  pet)
(en on revaluaion of properies held. B E1EERNEN
forown use, et of tax Wi ABRE - - - - DG - - - - - 5% - BB

Boagedfeenes o tenseion  EBAER
offnencid staements offoreln - BB EREEE
operatons HEXZS - - - - - 6442 - - - - 6442 28% 933

Tota comprehensive ncome FEERERA
forthe year 4%

& & & - 4056 6442 & & - (064 203 (M5 239669

Balnce at 31 December 2013~ R-%-=%
and 1 January 2014 tZAzt+-BR
CE-ME
-f-ANER
Issue oforcnay shares by it g
rightsssue ot 39 Lak(ns)
Ear redempton of FREETAR
converebonds Bx
Tensacion costs afbute EREnER
fo ightsissue expenses EhRAAE
Trnszcton wih oners EEENETNRS
Loss for the year

KERER
Ganonrevauaton of propertes ~ EfffEERNE
helc for own s, net of e - R
Exchange difeences on HEBIEH

transiton of fnancia HEdEREL
tatementsof HEXEE
foreign operations
Totdcomprehensivexpense AEERERRK
forthe year 45
Bdanceat 31 December 2014 W-F-TUE
t2f=t-R
e

BERE(LEEERAR
—E-MEFH




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Ol enExR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

2014 2013
—F—MmF =&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBNASRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax MrEERTE 1R (142,989) (17,682)
Adjustments for: PTYSIBEL AR
Finance costs BB 71,502 20,692
Bank interest income RITHLEWA (310) (332)
Amortisation of film products R 7,388 14,327
Amortisation of land lease TEAT T i S 5

prepayments 2,245 2,245

Depreciation of property, W - WEK
plant and equipment BEE 2,517 1,974
Change in fair value of KEMERRE
investment properties 2E) (23,698) (26,173)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEH B QR KIS - (1,520)
Net losses/(gains) on early redemption of ~ $2F& [0 A # A% & 5
convertible bonds B (E518), s F8E 27,556 (1,395)
Waiver of interest of convertible bond e ESF S (7,178) =
Share of loss of a joint venture PE—EEE T EEIE 2,331 448
(60,636) (7,416)
Operating cash flows before movements &8 & &2 BATH)
in working capital BEBEMRE
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,939) (38)
Increase in film products and film TR RERER
production in progress 80 (4,538) (10,322)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables  JEIE 5 IR, (3 H0) 2,918 (2,521)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FERFIE ek
deposits and other receivables H bk RE (38 m) m (15,890) 7,847
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FENTE BB # M, CRd) 113 (36)
Decrease in other payables and accruals ~ E /b &t 7k18 N E 5t & F R (152,983) (73,984)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEBAARS
ACTIVITIES T (233,955) (86,470)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B A 310 332
Acquisition of a subsidiary, Wi — RN E AR
net of cash acquired BEMBEEIR S - (11,774)
Payments for property, plant and equipment #1% - = & R &R (3,233) (4,508)
Additions of construction T2 (87,251) (77,266)
Additions of investments properties E YL I (31,437) (65,459)
Investment in a joint venture BEDLERE (2,400) (9,000)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REFTHFARE
ACTIVITIES bk} (124,011) (167,675)
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
5 7 Annual Report 2014




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GOHenEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BRIHE (27,522) (5,573)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests, W BE eI f e 2
including transaction costs BEXZKAE - (132,644)
Loans from a shareholder —EZREHER 50,704 109,000
Proceeds from short-term borrowing EEEEMSHRIA 274,700 20,000
Repayments of short-term borrowing EEREHEE (158,100) =
Loan from a related company —RERE A RIMER 12,400 12,400
Repayments of loans from a related EE—H@Es N
company B (12,400) (13,400)
Repayments of convertible bonds BB ES (235,404) (44,940)
Proceeds from shares issued under IR TRR D
rights issue Fr{S3kIA 465,444 =
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITESERCA - 78,775
Transaction costs of issuance of bonds BITEFNR SR - (4,977)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 2%17 A 3R A% (& 5 P15 KB - 92,000
Transaction costs of issuance of BT RESN
convertible bonds RS - (5,770)
Share issue expenses & E1TRY (16,988) (261)
NET CASH GENERATED BY RETEE TS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES bk aet 352,834 104,610
NET DECREASE IN ReRRLEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A BEE (5,132) (149,535)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FURERASEE
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR HH 8,007 157,517
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE BB R B ¥ T E M
CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OF REeEHnEg
CASH HELD IN FOREIGN
CURRENCIES (3,993) 25
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEE
AT THE END OF YEAR HH (1,118) 8,007
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RekBESLEEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEERD
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITEER 7,406 8,007
Bank overdrafts RITEX (8,524) -
(1,118) 8,007

EE I EMARAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

o9

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
16 November 2001 as an exempted company under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October 2010,
the Company deregistered in the Cayman Islands and duly
continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under
the laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October 2010. The
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit B, 2/F,
Jone Mult Industrial Building, 169 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
is principally engaged in investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are referred to as the Group hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”) unless otherwise
stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRWWAT S R AR ET b B 5 i HE 1)
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ 75 o6 0 5 i 3 4 I )
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)
The Group has applied for the first time in the current year KFEE  AEBED BRRA TR R&E
the following new and revised HKFRS: BESEEE e U
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities BANBHREER REER
and HKAS 27 (2011) F105% - BEMH
(Amendments) MEERE125 R
BREGHERF 275
(Z2——%)(fE3IK)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets BRGEAF 2R HHEHEE
and Financial Liabilities CCHES) kemas
HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable Amount BHGHERF 6% FERBEMNTKE
Disclosures for CHES) SHBE
Non-Financial Assets
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and BHGIERF R TETAZEER
Continuation of Hedge CHEN) bl por 11
Accounting
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies Bt (BRI HmE HE
ABZEY)
-REE21%
The adoption of these new and revised standards, RNZ S35 RS RTER - BEREAN
interpretation and amendments to standards have no BRI AB RSB EE RV BRI EER
material effect on the results and financial position of the & o
Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRS that have been issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) but
are not yet effective, in the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS

Financial Instruments’

Regulatory Deferral
Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions*

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?®

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS 2010-2012
Cycle®

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS 2011-2013
Cycle?

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS 2012-2014
Cycle®
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

e Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is
permitted.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

2.

PR FH W AT e 28606 5T 7 8 S 5 e o 3 U
(M7 o s s R 0 ) (28)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

2.

PR FH BT AT Ko 5606 5T 7 v B 205 e o 3 0
(M7 I s s e 0 1) (48)

BRUBHRELERF1S KK EF AW
(%)

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer; F—#: BAEEFIIVAEH

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the F2H: BAESHRHBNEE
contract;

Step 3: Determine the transaction price; BE=H%: BEXHE

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance FF . BRIEIEEESHNTHNENE
obligations in the contract; and &

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

FRY: REBERBOETE (i)

satisfies a performance obligation. RN -
Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when RIBE BT HBREERIFE 155 - BEARTK
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when BHEER (Sptit) Rl - BREER

“Control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment on
what the impact of the new or revised HKFRS is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

MBS R (1255 | B
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis which assumes the realisation
of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary
course of business notwithstanding that the Group
had consolidated net current liabilities of approximately
HK$349,735,000 and suffered loss of approximately
HK$148,913,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014.
The going concern basis has been adopted on the basis
that (1) the major shareholder, who is also the major
convertible bond holder of the Company and provides
loans facilities to the Company, has undertaken to provide
financial support to the Group to meet its liabilities as they
fall due and to maintain the Group as a going concern for
the next twelve months; and (2) the management of the
Group has been taking active steps to improve working
capital of the Group by obtaining further debt or equity
financing.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRS). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

HEGHBOR (8

AR R ()
AL R B AT 2 7] G B RS (%)

EAEEREHMB AR ZEH - WENE
BERERRRAER () ERREARER
TRARERE AL ERBRNEE(BRER
B)MZAREELMB AR B ERER
IR R ERERTH - FTB AR E
fto 22 E Mk 2 HERR 2 B B A% Y JB X B 2 5K IR
RIREINAKEEER L EZMB AR ZA
BEEXRBARIIREAEEMBRSE
BRAIZHE /A GXEN D BB NS
BEZ—BED)  NAREEFEEARA
MIEB A RRE ZEMIRE Z AR EHRES
BEFHERIFE 395 - MERARRKHRIIET
FHRZAAE - HAER) RS HERE
REERRRAEDEZRERAK -

EB A

EBWETDRABURIBEAR - REBEHE
FZRERAAEFE  MAETEREE
ErEE s BE  AREHRKET RES
AEEZ BBERARER IR 2%
HIREPTRITZ IRERNBE Rz AREZR
e BNEARE KA —RREERERS
R °

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 3 0 5 e A M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

U liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of a joint venture is described below.

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in
a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be a joint
venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the joint venture at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership investment in a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably
on the following bases:

Income derived from the production and distribution of
films, when the production is completed and the film is
released, the film has been distributed to the cinema
circuit and the amount can be measured reliably, which is
generally when the cinema circuit confirms to the Group
its share of box receipts.

Revenue from hotel room income is recognised when
services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution
and broadcasting rights over films, when the Group’s
entitlement to such payments has been established which,
subject to the terms of the relevant agreements, is usually
upon delivery of the film negatives to the customers.

Management fee income, food and beverage and ancillary
services are recognised when the agreed services are
rendered.

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets are
accepted and surrendered by the customer.

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred
to the buyers.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised over
the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised on the
accounting period when they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis
using effective interest method.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The Group as the lessor

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to
the lessee in return for a payment, or series of payments,
the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the
asset is included in the consolidated balance sheet based
on the nature of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and employee
benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme and are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC, except Hong Kong, are required to
participate in the employee retirement scheme operated
by the relevant local government bureau in the PRC and
to make contributions for their eligible employees. The
contributions payable by the subsidiary are calculated
based on a certain percentage of the salaries and wages
of those eligible employees and are recognised as an
expense during the period to which they relate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and employee
benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after 7
November 2002 and had not vested on 1 January 2005
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group operates equity settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference to
the share options awarded. Their value is appraised at the
grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase
in share options reserve. If vesting periods or other
vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of share options expected
to vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress (“CIP”), hotel properties and film studio, are
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight line method, at the following rates
per annum:
Leasehold land Over the lease term
Buildings over the shorter of the lease
term or 3'/5%
over the shorter of the lease
term or 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%

Leasehold improvements

office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation method
and estimated residual values are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged as
an expense during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

CIP other than hotel constructions represents plant
and building under construction and is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction as well
as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. CIP is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

CIP in relation to hotel constructions, hotel properties
and film studio are stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Increases in value arising on revaluation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of properties revaluation reserve.
Decreases in value arising on revaluation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same property and thereafter recognised in profit or loss.
Any subsequent increases are recognised in profit or loss
up to the amount previously charged and thereafter to the
properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment properties) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment properties are recognised in profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Land lease prepayment

Land lease prepayments represent the premium associate
with the favorable operating lease to acquire long-term
interests in lessee-occupied properties. The prepayments
are stated at cost and are amortised over the period of
the lease on a straight-line basis as an expense.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:
- Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries;

- Film products and film production in progress;

- Land lease prepayments;

- Property, plant and equipment; and

- Interests in subsidiaries and investment in a joint
venture

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Film products

Film products are completed films produced by the
Group. Film products, less estimated residual value and
accumulated amortisation, are amortised in proportion
to the estimated projected revenues over their economic
beneficial period subject to a maximum of 10 years.
Additional amortisation/impairment loss is made if future
estimated projected revenues are adversely different from
the previous estimation. Estimated projected revenues are
reviewed at regular intervals.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film production in progress

Film production in progress is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Costs include all direct costs
associated with the production of films such as direct
labour costs, cost of services, facilities and raw materials
consumed in the creation of a film. Upon completion,
these films under production are reclassified as film
products. Film production in progress is accounted for
on a film-by-film basis. Impairment losses are made for
costs which are in excess of the expected future revenue
generated by these films.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion
of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are determined
by the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

U the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in Note 6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity other than:

a) those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

b)  those that the entity designates as available for sale;
and

c) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

HEGHBOR (E)

EMTH (&)

SR E (F)

<5 ol 5 7 Y
TREE(RARBEFARSIRZERE
EBRIN) IR BERRFERETR - HE
FOERER SREEMGITARKESRE
ROFEREMEERELEZ —HFREMHE
HMRAFE  AemEERTRE -

A HHERAREMNS  RREZAAE
RiFsk REMEREKA TR RRE T8

EE -

HRAAEHEMEREE  RMEZEBEEA
B

o BAARHFTHREAMBEES

o  EBY MARANHTEEENER
ZIN AR

AR AR ESRETHHEA

A

c RYBABSHZEBEEZERD
3k -

RETERNEREE (HINEKESKIA) M
5 T eEETMIFHRENEES SIMNE
S —OFRHERIE - BUGRIRA S IR ER
EEERERAKEBELRRER AR
BT (E SRR N SR E B FTIE il &
B R sl [ AR A AR 1 3R ] RE S B R UK TR
REEEENRBES -

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 3 0 5 e A M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

99

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under equity. In
respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reserved through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability
and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Bonds and warrants

Bonds are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Warrants that are contractually transferable independently
of the bonds and entitle the holder to acquire a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments for
a fixed amount of cash are equity instruments. The
proceeds (net of transaction costs) allocated to the
warrants are recognised in the warrant reserve in equity.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability (together with the early redemption
option which is closely related to the host liability
component) and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible debts (with early
redemption option). The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair value assigned to the liability component is allocated
to the conversion option that meets the definition of an
equity instrument, and is included in equity as convertible
bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds equity reserve until the embedded
option is exercised or expired.

When the option is exercised, the convertible bonds
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be released to the retained earnings/
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank overdrafts, loan from a
related company, loans from a shareholder, finance lease
obligation and borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. HZHBOR(E)

(Continued)
Related parties R Wt Oy
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: W—FHBTHIER AR ARKNEREEH
i
()  the party is a person or a close member of that () ZAR—BATRKZEZIKESITR
person’s family and that person, Mezé AT
(@)  has controls or joint control over the Group; (@  FESI RS AEE
(o)  has significant influence over the Group; or (b) HAEBBERTE : 3k
(¢) is a member of the key management personnel © AEAEBENARTFGRAEIZEE
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; EEENXE
or %
(i)  the party is an entity where any of the following (iy FZABFETINE ARG ES :

conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of the (@ &ZE %Eﬁiﬁilgﬂ S8 2K
same group; ISUNG]

(o) one entity is an associate or joint venture of b)) —HEEAS —BEEMEEAA
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or IEELE(HIZ—EBEBZER
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); A WEBAANRRMB AR

/NS Ao

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of () EBERHEASEHRER-—F=H2
the same third party; BEE

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (d) MERBAF=-TERBZEED
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—EBAZF-HESR

ZHENT]

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan () EBRAAREENEARNEEEH
for the benefit of employees of either the L EEEBNZEBF T 2 BE
Group or an entity related to the Group; FIETEl

() the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a  EBRBX()FMHENATESISFEHE
person identified in (); and RHEH - &

(@ a person identified in (i)(a) has significant @ RO@F#EIATHEEZEEX
influence over the entity or is a member of the FENIBEZER(IZEEZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of BRR)EBEEEKE -

a parent of the entity).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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109

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised if the revisions affect only that period, or in the
period of the revisions and future periods if the revisions
affect both current and future periods.

Annual Report 2014
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for and write off of irrecoverable
receivables

The Group’s management determines the allowance
for irrecoverable receivables on a regular basis. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of the outstanding
receivables. These estimates are based on the credit
history of its customers and current market conditions.
When the Group’s management determines that there are
indicators of significant financial difficulties of the debtors
such as default or delinquency in payments, allowance
for debtors are estimated. The management of the Group
reassesses the estimations at the reporting date. When
the Group’s management determines the debtors are
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account for debtors. Any amount held in the allowance
account in respect of those debtors is reversed.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account their estimated residual value.
The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment.
If the expectation differs from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the depreciation and the
amortisation charge in the period in which such estimate
is changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at each
reporting date. They are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management estimates the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Estimated impairment loss on film products and
film production in progress

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s film products and film production in progress
with reference to its estimated future revenue less the
relevant costs, its intended future use and current market
environment. Impairment for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. In determining whether
impairment on film products and film production in
progress is required, the Group takes into consideration
the present value of future cash flows expected to be
received.

Annual Report 2014
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected revenue
of the film rights based on the shorter of the underlying
license period and their useful lives in order to ascertain
the amount of amortisation charges for each reporting
period. The appropriateness of the amortisation estimate
requires the use of judgement and estimates with
reference to the prevailing and future market conditions
and the expected cash flow pattern of the projected
revenue. Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could have a material effect on the amortisation expenses.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. FZEgFFABEIABEHMNFIZ EE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION R (42)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty T EEAHE k2 BRI ()
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of long-term other receivables A JE R IE 20 T8 {6 B4 7T

The long-term other receivables represent consideration £ HA H Ah j& Y SR TE 46 B2 R B b 5 BT A R
receivables regarding the construction management (Mi5E26) M TR E R EFTE L 2 FEU K
agreement with a local government company in the 15 - AEBEIRIESEREEGEMMFTET
PRC (note 26). The Group estimates the fair value of EMBEEMEN DR ERGEERBRERD
consideration receivables by determining the fair value of RNRME - Rk - REBRBAUSAORKRES
the property transferred based on a qualified professional REGE  HBRIEEEHZMNERDR N
valuer appraised. The Group also projects the future cash TERTEKRREZRKRIRESWA o BRARED
receipt of the consideration receivables based on reliable AABEMEBRREBRAZEHZESKE—
estimates of future cash flows derived from the repayment ERIRE - URBMAEEHE S RESTEM
terms in accordance with the construction management R AT HEE M 2 AP - B EMIERE
agreement. The difference between the fair value and BAS EER BB B MM LRIE E 7
actual receipt of the consideration implies a discount rate RIRETIZMRAZ FHEFTIEL ©

to reflect the Group’s assessment of the uncertainty in the

amount and timing of the cash flows. These estimates and

projections are determined by the Group’s management

based on their experience and assessment on current and

future market condition.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. B FEE B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from 2013.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt
(which includes trade payables, other payables and
accruals, bank overdrafts, loan from a related company,
loans from a shareholder, borrowings, finance lease
obligation, bonds and convertible bonds net of cash and
cash equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the
Company (comprising issued share capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contnued) 5. BARBEH (#)
Gearing ratio BRI R

EE BN AR - (BN —
5 EFGE AN KBS EA AN
MEK - REEFNRE  AEETRBY
I8 - FIRIATTT RIS B A RBITH
B THHBRE ARG -

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buybacks as
well as the issue of new debt.

RBERARNERBEBLRAT :

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:
2014 2013
—2-0EF —g—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FH&IT
Total debts RIETS 488,361 517,458
Total assets BEE 1,835,642 1,572,053
Gearing ratio BERE G R 27% 33%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EBtTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &I HH8
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHET FHET
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables EXRRERRIE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Other receivables H At EUGRIR 26 98,386 100,947
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEW B 55K I8 24 765 3,683
Deposits and other receivables 124 & E ith fE Uk 5008 26 10,500 6,792
Cash and bank balances HE RIRTTLER 27 7,406 8,007
117,057 119,429
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Amortised cost R A
Trade payables FENE 5 5/I8 28 158 45
Other payables and accruals  EH b fER FIB
RIEFTER 29 67,702 215,490
Bank overdrafts RITEX 27 8,524 =
Loan from a related — AR A R E K
company 30 12,400 12,400
Loans from a shareholder —ZRENER 31 44,240 =
Borrowings EPET 33 161,600 45,000
Bonds &5 35 79,946 74,182
Convertible bonds AR ES 36 206,642 367,978
Finance lease obligation B 75 A &R IE 34 19,249 17,898
600,461 732,993
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &WMIH(E)
(a) Categories of financial instruments () &MTHAH (&)
(Continued)
The Company
AR
2014 2013
—EB-lmF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FisE FET FHT
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables B R EWRIE
Other receivables HAh e Y sRIE 26 630 224
Amounts due from FEUPT B A 7
subsidiaries IE 32 1,410,928 1,110,501
Cash and bank balances Re kR HEERB 27 3,281 1,341
1,414,839 1,112,066
Financial liabilities cREeE
Amortised cost 1 88 A A
Other payables and accruals  E b fEf FIB
NEFER 29 856 3,042
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ETHI BR RFRE 32 339 349
Loans from a shareholder — BRI ER 31 44,240 =
Borrowings BE 33 126,700 45,000
Bonds &% 35 79,946 74,182
Convertible bonds AT ES 36 206,642 367,978
458,723 490,551
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

117

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial
risks which result from its operating, investing and
financing activities. The Group’s major financial
instruments include trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, cash and bank balances,
trade payables, other payables and accrual, bank
overdrafts, loan from a related company, loans
from a shareholders, borrowings, finance lease
obligation, bonds and convertible bonds. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies applied by
the Group to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group’s exposure in respect of financial instruments
or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks.

Market risks

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain
trade receivables and payables of the Group are
denominated in either RMB or United States Dollars
(“US$”). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy as the directors
of the Company considered that the volatility of
the exchange rates between HK$, RMB and US$
is limited. However, the directors of the Company
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

6.

SEMITH(Z)

(b)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SmTHE)

(b) b 285 o e i L )RR BB SR (48°)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The interest rates and terms of repayment
of the loan from a related company, loans from a
shareholder and borrowings which are subject to
fixed interest rates are disclosed in notes 30, 31
and 33 respectively. The Group currently does not
have any interest rate hedging policy, however, the
directors monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate change
exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SmTHE)

(b) b 285 o e i L )RR BB SR (48°)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investments in
financial instruments at fair values, the Group is not
exposed to significant price risk.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its

7 5 B (#8)

At fET A% L i

MR A KB EAE IR A A ETIRD
ERTEANEARE - RAKELE
EEREAERER

1 B A £ B
EERRESRITAHTFHRERE
TRTAGFBETRENEL  ©F

obligation under the terms of the financial instrument SERZHMBERNER - RRAR
and cause a financial loss to the Group. To minimise EmEEEERR ASEETEED

the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Majority of the Group’s bank balances are deposited
with banks in Hong Kong and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good credit-rating.

Credit risk is concentrated as 51% (2013: 76%)
of the total trade receivables are due from the
Group’s largest customer within film production
and distribution segment (2013: film studio, theme
park segment and hotel operation). However,
the management of the Group closely monitors
the progress of collecting the payments from the
customers and reviews the overdue balances
regularly. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued)

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate to
finance the Group’s operations and to meet its debt
obligations as they fall due. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly by the funds
obtained from the issuance of equity instruments.

At the reporting date, the maturity profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted payments and the
earliest date in which the entity can be required to
pay were set out below.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay.

6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SmTHE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) A7 I B L A BRSO (48
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued) G & B ()

Liquidity tables (Continued) mEELEE(E)

The tables include both interest and principal TEREEMEREASHESRE - BHF
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are BEXMmMs AMBBEHIERDSE
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived BIRBANMISHEFAESH -

from market interest rates prevailing at the end of
reporting period.

The Group &
Weighted More than

average Ondemand  1yearhbut Total
interest orwithin  lessthan  More than undiscounted Carrying
rate 1year 5years 5years  cash flows amounts

it 337 RER  SR-E RERRSE
ME  9-FR  EOREE  ZHEE  HE4E RAEE
% HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$

% B iy B B iy

At 31 December 2014 RZZ-BEtZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial iabilities HTESRIA
Trade and other payables and accruals BT E SRR A tEMFE

IREHER - 67,588 - - 67,588 67,588
Bank overdrats BITEY 450 8,558 - - 8,558 8,524
Loan from a related company —-BERAINER 11.00 14219 - - 14,219 12,400
Loans from a shareholder —BRRHER 9.66 48,241 - - 48,241 44,240
Borrowings fBg 9.25 124,208 44,791 - 168,099 161,600
Bonds 5 16.57 84,683 - - 84,683 79,946
Convertile bonds AfRER 1651 75,614 165,084 - 241,598 206,642
Finance lease obigation FBaAE 1156 5,185 7,003 61,732 74,910 19,249

428,296 218,768 61,732 708,796 600,189

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SmTHE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (o) B2 Jl i 457 B ) A BB O (42)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued) B 2P (4E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REEEE(E)
The Group AEE
Weighted More than
average  Ondemand 1 year but Total
interest or within lessthan  Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years Syears  cashflows amounts
T BER  SE AERRE
FE - g-fF  BESREE SRRE RESE BAEE
% HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

% AL B B BT B

At 31 December 2013 RZB-ZF+ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities HTEEHER
Trade and other payables and accruals B8 H3UE R EMER

FENRERER - 215,535 - - 21553 215535
Loan from a related company —HBR AR 1103 12925 - - 12,925 12,400
Borrowings #E 989 48,384 - - 48,384 45,000
Bonds &% 1657 5908 84,683 = 90,501 74,182

Convertible bonds ARESR 1651 21,700 495,311 = 517,011 367,978
Finance lease obiigation SBERE 1156 3412 8192 63491 75,09 17,898

307,864 588,186 63,491 959,541 732,993

ISR LB AR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

123

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

SEMITH(Z)

(b) b 285 o e i L )RR BB SR (48°)

Liquidity risk management (Continued) 5 Bl i P ()
Liquidity tables (Continued) mEELEE(E)
The Company FI/NE|
Weighted More than
average Ondemand  1yearhbut Total
interest orwithin ~ lessthan  More than undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5years Syears  cash flows amounts
il 337 RER  SR-E AEERS
Az H-FR  EOREE SHEE REEE Kk
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
% BN o o BN oo
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-BE+ZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities HTELRaE
Other payables and accruals HinENUERETER - 856 - - 856 856
Amount due to subsiclaries ENIHBATER - 339 - - 339 339
Loans from a shareholder —ZRRNER 9.66 48,241 - - 48,241 44,240
Borrowings f&& 9.25 115,686 25,232 - 140,918 126,700
Bonds &% 16.57 84,683 - - 84,683 79,946
Convertiole bonds AR ES 16.51 75614 165984 - M58 206642
325419 191,216 - 516,635 458,723
Financial guaranteed issued BIEHBRER
Corporate quarantee PEER - 12,400 - - - 12,400
Weighted More than
average  Ondemand 1 year but Total
interest or within lessthan  Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years Syears  cashflows amounts
RS BEL SR-E AEFRS
FE - F-ER BORIE SREE RELE Rk
% HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
% AT AT iy iy o
At 31 December 2013 R=Z-Z£+ZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial iabilites ~ 3{T£2HEE
Other payables and accruals At EAFERENER - 3,042 = = 3,042 3,042
Amount due to subsidlaries ERHEAARR - 349 - = 349 349
Borrowings f&& 989 48384 - - 48,384 45,000
Bonds &5 16.57 5,908 84,683 - 90,591 74,182
Convertible bonds TkES 1651 A700 495,311 - 51701 367,978
79,383 579,994 - 659,377 490,551
Financial guaranteed issued BIEHEHBER
Corporate quarantee EER - 12,400 - - - 12,400
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows.

° The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.

° The fair values of other financial assets and
liabilities (excluding described above and
derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated and company statements of
financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
and the Company did not have any assets and
liabilities that were measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

During the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

7. REVENUE/TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME, 7. WA Z“#3¥# - HbWA - HibjEiH

OTHER LOSSES AND GAINS L&
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, derived from FNERREAERFTEEZBNRA (LA
the Group’s principal activities recognised during the year AEBMEETE)MOT ¢
is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue/Turnover ONE-—F =
Artiste management fee income HAFBEEIRA 1,440 1,663
Hotel room income IS B R A 4,781 698
Food and beverage income BEHWA 1,599 -
Entrance fee income RELON 2,565 1,250
Films production and BERRER
licensing income FERFURA 1,269 14,236
Rental income e 1,448 581
Sales of goods EmHE 1,259 666
Ancillary services M 22 AR 7% 899 =
15,260 19,094
Other income Hibug A
Bank interest income IRITFEHA 310 332
Waiver of interest of e R ES
convertible bond B 7,178 =
Others Ef 292 3,609
7,780 3,941
Other losses and gains Higsig R e
Net (losses)/gains on early RRERRERESAF
redemption of convertible bonds (E18),Mzs (27,556) 1,395
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group is currently
organised into three operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.
Films production — Production and distribution of
and distribution films and provision and
artiste management of
management services to
artistes

Film studio operation — Operation of film studio

Hotel operation — Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

51 #RE B
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HER(E)
Segment revenues and results SN I SE 4
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue/ AT ARAIZRHY BEIDNAEBRA &
turnover and results by reportable segments: EEREEIN
Film
production
and
distribution Film Inter-
and artiste studio Hotel segment
management  operation  Operation elimination Total
EXRER
BITUR

BAEE 2R BEEE  DHEEH ]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TR THET THER THET

Year ended BE-_ZT—IF

31 December 2014 +=A=+-8

LEE

Revenue from external REIIREPHMA

customers 2,709 4,724 7,827 - 15,260
Inter-segment revenue D EBRUA - - 426 (426) -
Reportable segment revenue 7] 2R YA 2,709 4,724 8,253 (426) 15,260
Reportable segment loss AE/RHIEE (928) (2,073) (19,118) - (22,119)
Other income Heg A 101
Net losses on early redemption 2% B = A A%

of convertible bonds BEAERNERFE (27,556)
Unallocated corporation bl W]

expenses Ax (21,913)
Finance costs BMEXRA (71,502)
Loss before income tax BT AT E (142,989)

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HbER ()
Segment revenues and results (Continued) Vi L ONE S AC-)
Film
production
and
distribution Film Inter-
and artiste studio Hotel segment
management operation Operation elimination Total
EXRER
BITAR
EAER Rl BESE  DHEEE BeHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET THT THT FHT
Year ended BE-Z-=F%
31 December 2013 +=A=+-8
LEE
Revenue from external RENREP
customers HIA 15,899 2,941 254 - 19,094
Inter-segment revenue DERREBA - - 490 (490) =
Reportable segment revenue ] 2R EUA 15,899 2,941 744 (490) 19,004
Reportable segment AZHAE
(loss)/profit (B518) /i Fl (541) 20,729 (11,621) = 8,567
Other income S ON 320
Gain on early redemption of 1R EEE [ A[ A%
convertible bonds BRI 1,395
Net gains on disposals of HERBAR
subsidiaries ol e e 1,520
Unallocated corporation AABAT]
expenses X (8,792)
Finance costs AR (20,692)
Loss before income tax BRENSHRIEE (17,682)

EE I EMARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers and inter-segment sales during
both years.

Segment (loss)/profit represents the (loss)/profit
incurred by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including directors’ salaries, net
(losses)/gains on early redemption of convertible bonds,
gain on disposals of subsidiaries, other income, finance
costs, income tax expense and unallocated corporate
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

o #RERL (45)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HbER ()
Segment assets and liabilities S KA
Film
production
and
distribution
and artiste Film studio Hotel
management operation Operation Total
EFRUER
BITUR
BAEE 2 BIERE HeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAL FEL TAL
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-MOF+=A=+-H
Reportable segment assets AEHIHEE 13,300 858,067 939,626 1,810,993
Property plant and equipment MmE - BEREHE 18,129
Cash and cash equivalents BeBEeEEER 3,438
Unallocated corporation assets AP ABEBE 3,082
Consolidated assets SREE 1,835,642
Reportable segment liabilites ~ T2HIHBEE (2,223) (56,634) (34,671) (93,528)
Loans from a shareholder —RBRNER (44,240)
Loan from a related company —EIRB A RNER (12,400)
Borrowings ET (161,600)
Bonds E% (79,946)
Convertible Bonds R ES (206,642)
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEEE (159,756)
Provision for income tax FSHiAE (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBARAE (2,105)
Consolidated liabilities FEAE (763,168)
At 31 December 2013 R-F—=F+-A=+-H
Reportable segment assets AE2HnHEE 33,372 784,949 732,391 1,550,712
Property plant and equipment ER Jﬁ-ﬁ%g?&ﬁ 18,457
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁéfﬁlﬁ B 1,557
Unallocated corporation assets AAMAREE 1,327
Consolidated assets GREE 1,572,053
Reportable segment liabilities BEE GRS (1,154) (106,222) (123,994) (231,370)
Loan from a related company —RIABATNER (12,400)
Borrowings 8 (45,000)
Bonds fx (74,182)
Convertible Bonds AR ER (367,978)
Deferred tax liabilties @%@%@Iﬁiﬁﬁ (125,727)
Provision for income tax PTG (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AAWMARIEE (3,027)
Consolidated liabilities =N

(862,639
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. EFR (&)

grib g R R R ()

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERDERBAERDHBIRER

allocating resources between segments:

- allassets are allocated to reportable segments other - BRRAFEEN FIEBEEZ/IRES
than corporate assets; and AIZ2Ho5HE : &
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - BRAaFAaEN EEEeEIEES
other than corporate liabilities. AE2WDEL ©
Film
production
and
distribution
and artiste Film studio Hotel
management operation Operation Total
BUAR
BITUR
EAEE TR BIERE Bem
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET TET
At 31 December 2014 R=B-mFE+=A=+-H
Depreciation of property, NE - BERRENE
plant and equipment 58 533 970 1,561
Amortisation of land lease BT E
prepayments - - 2,245 2,245
Amortisation of fim products FHEE 7,388 - - 7,388
Change in fair value of REMEAE
investment properties 28 - (23,698) - (23,698)
Addition to non-current assets ERBEELZM - 31,520 100,079 131,599
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-A=+—-H
Depreciation of property, MmE  BELRENE
plant and equipment 58 345 753 1,156
Amortisation of land lease BT S
prepayments - - 2,245 2,245
Amortisation of fim products Sk 3 14,327 - - 14,327
Change in fair value of REMELNE
investment properties 23 - (26,173) - (26,173)
Addition to non-current assets FERBBEEM = 137,620 190,197 327,817

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong Kong
(being the place of domicile of the major companies
comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the contracts are negotiated and entered
with the customers. The total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2013, included
in the revenue arising from provision of film production
and distribution and artiste management are revenues
of approximately HK$14,108,000 which arose from film
products distribution from the Group’s largest customer.
No single customers contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014.

g BRERL (45
i [ R

AEEMRBRARERBEEAETEIREF
(BREEE) (AAKEE T EQRME
B E) o

EE AR P EREESRERETAY
MR ETE « KENBESOBKAEER
A -

A B R P AR

HE-_ZT—=6+_A=+—HIFE &£
HEFRERFITUARBATEEENRA
BREANAEESEATFPEITTR TEENHK
A#714,108,00087C « HEZT—UF+=
A=+—HALtFE  UEE-XFEEAS
BULA 10% s L ©

FINANCE COSTS il i AR
2014 2013
—EB-lF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Finance lease charges PHEEER 1,984 1,978
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZAE 333 -
Interest on bonds BHF B 11,673 6,783
Interest on convertible bonds ATARESF B 49,545 20,523
Interest on loans from a shareholder —BREEFKAFE 1,710 -
Interest on loan from a related company —E B AR BT E 1,324 1,074
Interest on other borrowings wholly ARAFRNEBHER
repayable within five years B HE M EE TS 11,218 3,013
Interest on secured other borrowing HARAFRTBEEEN
wholly repayable within five years HihBEFBEENE 3,849 —
Interest on secured bank borrowings HARAFRNTBEEED
wholly repayable within five years BEBIBITEERE 173 =
81,809 33,371
Less: amount capitalised in W ERTEERME
construction in progress ol -t (10,307) (12,679)
71,502 20,692

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 11.31% (2013: 11.81%) per annum for the year.

AEEONMEFGEREN LR/ EF
11.31% (ZF—=4F : 11.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. B& P 45 B i s 48
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Loss before income tax is arrived BT BRTE IR E 0
at after charging/(crediting): B (T A) THIEIE :
Amortisation of film products ARk i) 7,388 14,327
Amortisation of land lease TEfS - AH B
prepayments 2,245 2,245
Auditor’s remuneration IZE A & 463 610
Costs of inventories recognised ERAM T ERA
as expenses 315 247
Depreciation of property, Y% - BENEREITE
plant and equipment 2,517 1,974
Minimum lease payments under BEGEAEREDE
operating leases in respect of HREBAE R
rented premises 2,849 2,689
Rental receivables from investment WEYFERHES
properties less direct outgoings of BB #2249 49,000 % 7T
approximately HK$49,000 (2013: Nil) —E—=F ) (1,399) (581)
Employee benefit expenses EEEFBEX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIREEZEHS)
(Note 14) (FFzE14)
— Salaries and allowances - e KER 24,881 13,395
— Contributions to retirement benefits —RIREF
schemes FTEIMHERK 3,791 217
28,672 13,612
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. Frf3Bib X%
Income tax recognised in profit or loss AR AN RIS YiTh
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Deferred tax (Note 37): EIERIE (MIzE37) -
— Current year - RFE 5,924 6,543
1 33 National Arts Ent::iilr:g:eét sg?t (;L(J;j:lire Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Income tax recognised in profit or loss
(Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there were
no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for both years.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) enterprises
income tax at 25% has not been provided as the PRC
subsidiaries incurred losses for taxation purposes for both
years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to loss

11. FifaBib X (&)

TR 25 P RS B PR AL ()

REBEFEEA - BAEMERORMEFTERD
A 16.5% 5T 8 o HRRIESE NI EE
BEAEEESEMERBRER - S0 &t
BEANEBUELRE -

RPN EARKME (TR ])HE QRN
EFEEHBREREER - WA BRPELE
FRSHL (R 25%) 1EH B -

RAELM Bl ARE [ A A OB IR T IR AE RE R A
EHBRAMEGAE -

AERHRIAMX A EGARRE R EM2E R

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AFRWBRTIRTESIBERNOT -
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loss before tax FRERIES1E (142,989) (17,682)
Tax at domestic income tax rate EBIRFS R RGTEMIIA (27,370) (1,700)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR A
for tax purpose Mg g 17,434 6,147
Tax effect of income not taxable BAERBIUAR
for tax purpose Mg E (271) (2,948)
Tax effect of unrecognised estimated RERMMETRIBEER
tax losses MG & 16,131 5,064
Tax effect of temporary difference REREREEN
not recognised B2 - (20)
Income tax expense for the year AKEEFSHRAXZ 5,924 6,543

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11. FifsBip X (&)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive 7 Al 2 T WA A e R ) T AR A
income
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deferred tax B IE
Arising on income recognised EEERAEMEE
in other comprehensive income: WA TEREIBA
Gain on revaluation of properties EEFBEEBYENRE
held for own use 28,105 84,853
Total income tax recognised in REAMZEW AR
other comprehensive income RIFTIS T ARRE 28,105 84,853
12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. A2 wlHEA AR A 4 B 518
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the REERRARBEBEAEGLEEESBR
Company for the year of approximately HK$148,913,000 #9148,913,000% T( = & — = F: 4
(20183: approximately HK$20,614,000) includes a loss 20,614,000/ 70) * BEE R AR A M
of approximately HK$103,868,000 (2013: approximately WK EIE R E1E 103,868,000 L (=&
HK$26,500,000) which has been dealt with in the financial —=4F : #926,500,000/87C) °
statements of the Company.
13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. FtiEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on FRN - EREREBEBEDREBEAAGES ALE
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of 1 B 18 #49148,913,0008 T (— T — =4 ¢
approximately HK$148,913,000 (2013: approximately #720,614,000/8 7T ) & B 31TH)EBAR AN
HK$20,614,000) and the weighted average of W F 1 E41,051,916,000 1 ( —E— =4
approximately 1,051,916,000 (2013 (restated): (#& &%) : 49620,086,000/% ) 5+ & - BE K
approximately 620,086,000) ordinary shares in issue - REERE R RESFHITE AR R #
during the year. Diluted loss per share for loss attributable ERE Bt BEZ—NERZF—=
to the owners of the Company for the years ended 31 F+_A=+—HLEFEXRAEE AEM
December 2014 and 2013 was the same as basic loss B RN SRS BB EGREREIBAR -
per share because the impact of the exercise of the share
options, warrants and convertible bonds is anti-dilutive.
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. ##H&SHEBHNANBHM
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2013: ENSRENTE(ZE—=F: WB)EFK
Nine) Directors and the chief executive were as follows: SREBABNEMAT
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z-—NFE+=-A=+—HLEE
Contributions
to
Salaries Share-  retirement
and other based benefits Total
Fees benefits payments schemes emoluments

FER URBH BER
e Hittlgd  ERHAR SRR ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET TR TR TR

Executive Directors: HITEE:
Miss Law Po Yee EER/ME - 685 - 17 702
Ms. Sin Ho Yee i LU ) - 168 - 8 176
Mr. Chow Kai Weng ElHES - 550 - 17 567
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam EBIMRSEE - 1,445 - 17 1,462
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred (Note ()) #REI &5 4 (FizE () 25 - - - 25
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim B e 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive BIUFHITES:

Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor BRMEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert gECks 50 - - - 50
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick HERYR 50 - - - 50
Mr. Li Kit Chee (Note (ii) 2 S (R () 30 - - - 30
Total emoluments @e 235 2,848 - 59 3,142
Notes: BiaE -
) Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred is resigned on 11 July 2014. () MEHEEER-Z—NFELAT+—HEHE -
(i) Mr. Li Kit Chee is appointed on 1 June 2014. iy FHRZEER-Z—NFSA—BEZE-

ISR LB AR AR
—2-mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. #HMEERRESHANBHMN (Z)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_Z—=F+"HA=1T—"HIEFE
Contributions
to
Salaries Share- retirement
and other based benefits Total
Fees benefits payments schemes  emoluments
ek R A RINEN
fiikn HiRh  ERHMER REES “ZHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT THET TEx THET
Executive Directors: TES:
Miss Law Po Yee FER/ME - 610 - 15 625
Ms. Sin Ho Yee i =l | - 137 - 7 144
Mr. Chow Kai Weng BRELE - 445 - 15 460
Non-executive Directors: F#H{TEE:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam SEEIMEE - 1,485 - 15 1,500
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred ~ #EIE %4 50 - - - 50
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim TR E 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive By FHITES :
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor AV EAE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert FCEE 50 = = - 50
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick =8 E21% 50 - - - 50
Total emoluments L 230 2,677 - 52 2,959
Ms. Law Po Yee is also the chief executive of the RE T/ MARBSRERARITRAR - PIH
Company and her emoluments disclosed included those B 2 N BIERERITBUEE TR IR
for services rendered by her as the chief executive. There He HE_T-—NFR-_ZF—=F+=
was no arrangement under which a director waived or A=+—RLLFEYEREABEMESREL
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended BB MEEANE AL

31 December 2014 and 2013.

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 15. @ B #i

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2013: three) were Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
14 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2013:
two) individual were as follows:

EARELERRFMALS =R (ZF
—ZF: ZR)RARAEE - RENHMH
EREXME4PRE - EBEMH(=F
— =% WA ALHFMOT

Salaries and other benefits FeREMER
Retirement benefit costs IRRB R

Their emoluments were within nil to HK$1,000,000.

ISR LB AR AR
—2-mEER

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT T TT
657 1,210

22 30

679 1,240

B ERE BT FZ % 1,000,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W3 ~ Wb Kt fhi

Leasehold Furniture, Construction
land fixtures in progress
and Hotel  Leasehold and office Motor Film (hotel
buildings ~ properties improvements  equipment vehicles studio  construction) Total
BELIHE B £ER HBIR
BF EENE HENERE  BOERE RE gRE (BEER) ag
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK3000
ThL Thn Thr ThL Thn i A Thn
COST A
Balanceat 1 January 2013 RW=ZF—=%
—A-BfER 15,237 - 1,683 3,617 2956 - 93,248 116,741
Additions AE 3,592 - 20 743 153 - 196,051 200,559
Acquistion of a subsiciary bt el 7N
(note 46) (Hizk46) 11778 = = = = = 11,778
Gain on properly revaluaton  EEERINE - - - - - 339,409 339,409
Effect of foreign curmency INEEH£E
exchange offferences )74 282 - 53 4 - 457 845
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=F
and 1 January 2014 +ZA=+-R
R=5-mE
—A-BiER 30,889 - 1,711 4413 3154 - 629,165 669,332
Additions AE = - 2625 708 - 97,557 100,790
Surplus on valuation [BERs - - - - - 112420 112420
Effect of foreign currency NEERES
exchange differences i} (339) - (1) (39) - (7,367) (7.816)
Transfer from Investment sRanEng
properties (note 17) (Hsk17) - - - - 729517 - 729517
Transfer o hotel construction ~ EEZEEER - 831,775 - - = (831,775) 5
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=F-B&+=F
=t-BhER 30,556 831,775 1,714 6,857 3,824 729,517 - 1,604,243
DEPRECIATION i
Balanceat 1 January 2013 HZZ-=F—f-H
g 539 - 1,542 860 880 = = 3821
Depreciation expense MERY 814 - 689 450 = 5 1974
Effect of foreign currency NEERES
exchange differences g} 7 = 4 13 = 5 0
Balance at 31 December 2013 W-E-=F
and 1 January 2014 +-A=+-Rk
“3-mE
—A-BiER 1,360 - 1,565 1525 1,343 - - 5793
Depreciation expense NERR 1011 - 2 982 502 - - 2517
Effect of foreign currency MNEERER
exchange diferences Vg2 11 5 ) (4 4] = 5 ]
Balance at 31 December 2014 H=F-RfE
TZAZT-AMER 2,382 - 1,581 2,463 1,836 - - 8,262
CARRYING AMOUNTS Kk
Balance at 31 December 2014 H=Z-MfF
TZAZT-BHER 8174 831,775 183 4,304 1,988 129517 - 1595981
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=%
TZA=T-BHEH 29529 - 146 2,888 1811 - 629,165 663,539

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings
shown above are situated on:

16. W3k - W Kkt (&)

XA AETHEEFREEN S TH
T

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FH&TT
Land in Hong Kong under R BB H
medium-term leases HELH 17,102 17,629
Land in the PRC under LR A B Y R
medium-term leases HELTH 11,072 11,900
28,174 29,529

On 3 October 2013, the Group decided the change
its accounting policy of its construction in progress,
representing the hotel constructions of the Group to
be held for own use, from cost model to revaluation
model, in order for better reflection of the commercial
value of hotel constructions in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The effect of the change is
prospective and the Group’s construction in progress
was valued on 31 December 2013 by RHL Appraisal
Limited (“RHL”"), a qualified professional valuer who holds
a recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category
of property, plant and equipment being valued. The
revaluation surplus (approximately HK$339,409,000)
net of applicable deferred income taxes (approximately
HK$84,853,000) was credited to properties revaluation
reserve in the amount of approximately HK$254,556,000.
If the construction in progress had not been revalued,
it would have been included in the consolidated
financial statements at historical cost of approximately
HK$289,756,000 as at 31 December 2013.

R-ZE—ZF+A=ZH AEBRTEHE
BEIREREERANAEBEERER) D
SHBRAKAEARAEMHER - BHR
RN B4R E B % 2k N B i b I BB &
ERNEEEE  RERXNTEDEY
ME - MAKENEREIRER=Z—=F
TZA=+—HHBEEREEMBERNKFIT
FEBERBRAR (KT EITMHE -
ZIEEMEAERATMNAEEEE R KT
HATEEYE - BE KRB I AR A
#eEs o B {hH A #R (47339,400,00078 7T ) 1k
i R IEE P15 4 (4984,853,0007%8 7T ) B
ST ABEEL) 5 254,556,000 8 T D E E (E
HE - MERIRYEETER =%
—ZE+ A=+ BEREERELEKALY
289,756,000 B TTaT ASRE ISRk ©

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 3% ~ W5 Kt (2)

141

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, construction
in progress have been completed and transferred to
Hotel properties. Hotel properties were revaluated on
31 December 2014 by RHL. The revaluation surplus
(approximately HK$112,420,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes (approximately HK$28,105,000)
was credited to properties revaluation reserve in the
amount of approximately HK$84,315,000. If the hotel
properties had not been revalued, it would have been
included in the consolidated financial statements at
historical cost of approximately HK$387,313,000 as at 31
December 2014.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s construction in
progress, the highest and best use of the construction
in progress is their current use. The reconciliation of the
opening and closing fair value balances is stated in the
above table.

Annual Report 2014

REE-Z—NWFE+-A=+—BILEE -
FREIREERTEBAEYE - BEME
R-ZT—mWE+-A=+—HBHKITE
iy o EfH A& (4112,420,00078 7T ) 1B
AR IREFT S (4928,105,000% 7T) B
ST ABREE4) 584,315,000 B T ¥ E(E
- WMBAEMELEEITEME - HHiE
—E-NFE+-_A=t+—HHELKAL
387,313,000 BTt ARG B TE ik ©

REFAEEERTRNRAER 2T
EONESAREREAREREMAEZ - A2T
BOFNAABRFREROHRINN L
% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

There has been no change to the valuation techniques
during the year. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these construction in progress
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised (Level
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the key inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

16. W3k - W Kkt (&)

FR - HERMLEZS) - TREHREBZ
SEETIRNAABWAEE(CERMA
MERMEEIZHABBR) WEHN  URE
MARBEERRARBENEZZHABUER
MABRIEZEMOBNAAEBR(FE R
EE=H) -

Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
Element hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs ~ Range/Amount  Sensitivity
& MEER  HERWRIEZBABE EXTURRANRE #E/ o8 §RE
Construction in Level 3 Direct comparison method by Discounts on quality o~ -10% to 10% The higher the premiums or
progress and Hotel =4 assuming sales transactions as properties -10% £ 10% discounts, the higher or lower
properties avallable in the relevant market (ie.  HMEZRNNE the fair values

FRIBREENE sales transaction price per hotel
room) and taking into account the
costs that will be expended to
complete the constructions, with
significant adjustments for differences
in the location and condition of the
@Group’s construction in progress
ERUEE - BERBBTS L5
EX5 AEREERRNHERS
{B) REBTRERAF R
A URFEEERTIRNMNER
GHELHERER

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings which
had an aggregate net book amount at 31 December 2014
of approximately HK$17,102,000 (2013: HK$17,629,000)
were pledged to obtain banking facilities for overdrafts. At
the end of the reporting period, the net carrying amount
of film studio held under finance leases of the Group was
approximately HK$11,072,000 (2013: HK$11,900,000).

it

HESNEDR  DLERDR
BRI

AEER-_T—NF+_A=+—BH&K
EFEXA17,102,0008 T(ZE—=
17,629,000 7T) #E THE T RIEFE
FIET - LRSS NRITHERE - R
EHXR - AEBBERERERBHZRERK
ZEREREA A11,072,0008 T (22— =
£ 1 11,900,000/ 7T) °

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥3¥ ~ W5 Kt (2)

(Continued)
The Company A ]
Furniture,
fixtures and
office Motor
equipment Vehicles Total
B £BR
WRAERE AE #zE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TFET FET FHT
COST AR
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H
B &SRR 287 200 487
Additions NE 24 - 24
Balance at 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+=A4
and 1 January 2014 —t+t—BEk=ZT—MNF
—B—HB® &% 311 200 511
Additions =S 3 - 3
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-—NE+=A
=+— B4R 314 200 514
DEPRECIATION e
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE—=4F
— A— B8R 148 200 348
Depreciation expense ERX 61 = 61
Balance at 31 December 2013 NZZT—=F+_57
and 1 January 2014 =+—HAk=ZZ—r
F— A —BHLE 209 200 409
Depreciation expense WERX 60 - 60
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NE+=A
=t+—HHER 269 200 469
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRTEIE
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E—NE+=A
=t+— B4R 45 - 45
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A4
—+—HN&ER 102 - 102
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
1 43 I Annual Report 2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 3 0 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES “E&EW¥E
The Group AR

The Group’s property interests held under operating

AEBLSRIEEMRELEHERENY

leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value ¥RaRAARERAGE  WAEAKRE
model and are classified and accounted for as investment YD FERARK
properties.
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Fair value ARE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 676,576 513,426
Additions #n 31,437 134,932
Change in fair value N EE 23,698 26,173
Exchange realignment bE (2,194) 2,045
Transfer to properties, plant and equipment EE =% « [BE N & (729,517) =
At 31 December W+=ZA=+— - 676,576
Changes in unrealised gains or losses on  AREFF AIBzEMES,
revaluation of investment properties WEMERE R W=
for the year included in profit or loss Sk ETIE R & 23,698 26,173
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 REBENREMERZ-_Z—=F1+2AH

December 2013 have been arrived at market value basis
carried out by RHL, a qualified professional valuer who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category of
the investment properties being valued.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
transferred investment properties located in PRC with the
fair value of RMB585,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$729,517,000) at 23 December 2014 to property, plant
and equipment (see note 16) upon opening for tourists to
Film Studio.

=+ —HNARERABEREXGERMKF
TTRMEEREEY  ZMHEMEFERAN
HAEXER IS EEREYENL
AR R B AR B

REZ-_ZT—NFEF+-_A=+—HILF
CAEEREHMETRKE  #RZ
E—NE+_AZ+T=RAAnERAARK
585,000,0007T (1HE R 49729,517,000% 7T )
AP BIMNIREEEREYE - HE &R
H (RHIEE16)

MS’%

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

17. L&MW (E)
ARGEH (&)

REMENRAER AEVENRS K
RERGSHERERE -

There has been no change to the valuation techniques REBE-ZE—=F+-"A=+—HILFE "
during the year ended 31 December 2013. The following
MENDRERAEE(LERAMAMER
MEFZHABIR)NER  UREBEAR
B 2RBAAETEEEHABENATH
REEMIBENRABEERR(F—REF=

table gives information about how the fair values of these
investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and key inputs used), as well as the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements

are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to ®) o

which the key inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant

Element hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Range/Amount Sensitivity

nE MAEER  HERWRIEGABE EXTUBRBAGE €E/ &8 HRE

Buildings Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs  Replacement costs of RMB199,915,000 The higher the costs of

BF E=H approach (based on current constructions on the AR constructions, the higher
cost of replacement of the land 199,915,000 ¢ the fair values
improvements, less allowance  ti FERNEER A BRENARR  DABERR
for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation)
FEEENNE(ERDERERM
BERE - BRERBRR A
B ANRE REILIELR)

Land Level 3 Market approach (based on the ~ Discounts on quality  -2% to -9% The higher the discounts,

1 F= comparable accommodation of properties 2% Z-9% the lower the fair values
value sq.ft. observed from the ~ HEEEMIE fgRs DAEAE
market)
miga (ERETEERMAEN AL,
BEENETARER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

18. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENT 18. PN LM &
The Group A4
2014 2013
—E2-lmF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
The Group’s land lease prepayments REBWHTEN L
comprise: HERRE:
At 1 January n—A—H 82,507 84,752
Amortisation during the year F B (2,245) (2,245)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 80,262 82,507
The land lease prepayments represented the premium TEfS T SR R BRI T E B AKE
recognised when acquiring the land interests in the PRC HELHES TSR ERARE -

by operating lease arrangement with the local authority.

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. &L mIHtE
The Company Ay ]
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRAD - AR AE 26,429 26,429
Less: Impairment loss recognised W BEFERER
in prior years RIEE 1R (25,547) (25,547)
882 882
During the year ended, the directors of the Company RAFERN - ARREELENB AR L
considered and reviewed the carrying amount of EEGBRHEEFEZS BB ZEMNEA
investment in subsidiaries with reference to the business AMEEREE REEZ—HEFE=ZT
operated by those subsidiaries and their net assets value. —=F+_A=F+—HIFE ' WEHFR
No impairment loss has been identified during the year EE51E -

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

EE I EMARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. EBAR#E (&)

(Continued)
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 ARARRZZE—HFE+TA=1T—HAWNEE
December 2014 are set out as follows: MEARFRAT :
Proportion
Issued and of nominal
fully paid value of
share capital/ issued capital/
Place of registered registered
Form of incorporation capital/paid-up capital held by
Name of subsidiary business structure or registration capital the Company  Principal activities
BEI L]
HRRE/ iEs{E <o
ERRLEE ifEx/ RAmEE /R
HEARER ERERYA i 1 e BAuH  TEEER
National Arts Entertainment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Provision of management
(“NA Entertainment”) Biunan BE HK$1,500,000 (indirect) senvices to artistes
RERLARNA ([HEHE)) LA 1,500,000 (F&) in Hong Kong
EEAREARMERRE
National Arts Entertainment Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited A Islands US$192,308 (clrect) in Hong Kong
BERETRERAT ARERER LiER192,308% T (Bff) HERETRERR
National Arts Production & Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 100%  Provision of promotional
Promotions Limited Al B LER1ET (indlrect) performance services
BESERERERAT () in Hong Kong
ERERMERRLRE
National Arts Films Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Production and distribution
Limited ("NA Fim”") A R HK$1,500,000 (indirect) of fim in Hong Kong
REYRREARAT £i81R1,500,000787 (Fi) EERENEREN
(S 70)
Arts Tour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100%  Property investment
BEEERAT A B HK$10,000 (direct) in Hong Kong
£38% 1000087 (B%) EBREOMERE
1 47 National Arts Emi:im?; sg?t (;l(,l)l":lire Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. EBAR#E (&)

(Continued)
Proportion
Issued and of nominal
fully paid value of
share capital/ issued capital/
Place of registered registered
Form of incorporation capital/paid-up capital held by
Name of subsidiary business structure or registration capital the Company  Principal activities
BE L]
Hrikx/ FEERT
ERA L ifEx/ RAEE /R
WEARAR EHERY it 1 e EAnH  TEEER
Glory Max Group Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary share of US$1 100%  Investment holding
Binan Islands TBR1ET (olrect) in Hong Kong
EERREE (%) EEBETRARR
Head Return Limited (‘HRL") Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$100 100%  Investment holding
BREBRAA(ER)) R £k ERER100%T (indirec) in Hong Kong
(%) EERETREER
Expand Pacific Limited (‘EPL") Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$100 100%  Investment holding
AT RRERAR L B LRR100AT (indirect) in Hong Kong
(px=211:4)) (%) EEAETRERR
BlmEZBEERAR Wholy foreignowned ~ PRC Paid-up capital of 100%  Hotel operation in the PRC
Foshanshi Huixing Jiudian Co., Lt enterprise (WFOE") 1S$34,085,379 (ndrect) ~ EREAEERE
HERERR EHAR (FE)
34,085,379 7T
BLUTESREREERAT WFOE PRC Paid-up capital of 100%  Property development and
Foshanshi Huishou fing qu kai fa WERELE i 1U5$29,555,380 (indirect) operation of fim studio
Co., Lid* EHER (FE) and theme park
29,555,380 inthe PRC
EREERNER
BEYENRERLE

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. EBAR#E (&)

(Continued)
Proportion
Issued and of nominal
fully paid value of
share capital/ issued capital/
Place of registered registered
Form of incorporation capital/paid-up capital held by
Name of subsidiary business structure or registration capital the Company  Principal activities
BRR KRR
Hrikx/ FEERT
ERRLEE ifEx/ RAEE /R
WEARER EBERY i 1 e BAnH  TEEER
BLTHREEEERAR Domestic enterprise PRC Registered capital of 100%  Retaiing of souvenirs
Foshanshi Yupinxuan Trading Co,, Ltd" &M% el RMB100,000 (indirect) inthe PRC
HAMER (B%) HErEZELSM
ARE100,00070
BUTHRRRARAR Domestic enterprise PRC Registered capital of 100%  Light refreshment restaurant
Foshanshi Yufu Food & Beverage RNELE i RMB100,000 (indrect) inthe PRC
Co., Lid" AR (%) RrEgedREE
ARE100,0007
—BEEREFH(RI)ERAT  WROE PRC Regstered capital of 100%  Inective
National Arts Reputation SZ consuling  SMEEEME i RMB500,000 (ndirect) ~ EEEH
Co., Lid" HER (%)
AEH5000007C
BLTEEEEERAE WFOE PRC Registered capital of 100%  Inactive
Foshanshi National Arts Hotel Co,, Ltd* S EBE (% dﬂ RMB500,000 (ndrect) ~ EEXH
FRalIE e ()
ARE500,0007
1 49 National Arts Emi:im?; sg?t (;l(,l)l":lire Group Limited
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19. MBARIBRE (2)

(Continued)
Proportion
Issued and of nominal
fully paid value of
share capital/ issued capital/
Place of registered registered
Form of incorporation capital/paid-up capital held by
Name of subsidiary business structure or registration capital the Company  Principal activities
BRAR KRR
B/ FEERT
ERAL ifEx/ RAEE /R
WEARER EBERIS HafibH LS BAuA  IEER
Rainbow Dragon Corporation Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$150 100%  Investment holding
Limited Binan BE ERR150%T (indirect) in Hong Kong
EIARAT (M) AEBETREARR
Wide Expand Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100%  Investment holding
BYERAR Bl B LRR100BT (ndiect) ~ in Hong Kong
(%) EERETREER
Broad Sky Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$20 100%  Property investment
BAREBRAT] A % LA 0BT (dlrec) in Hong Kong
(B#) EEAETERE
National Arts Fim Shooting Base Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 100%  Inactive
Management Company Limited Al B LR 10,0003 (ndrec) ~ HEEH
BERENEERR AR ()
National Arts Travel Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$500,000 100%  Inactive
BEKEARAT e B L2k 500,000% 7 (ndrect) ~ EEEH
(F%)
Elegant Motion Enterprise Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary share of US$1 100%  Investment holding
JE 21N Rl Islands LRR1ET (direct) in Hong Kong
ERERHE (Bff) HERETRERR
Flash Star Holdings Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary share of US$1 100%  Investment holding
REZRBRAT H Islands Laki1Er (olrect) in Hong Kong
RBHREE (B&) HERETREER
Wealth Day Enterprise Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary share of US$1 100%  Investment holding
EAMEBRAT R/ Islands LER1ER (direct) in Hong Kong
HE4RES (B%) HEBETREER

*

For identification only

Note:

None of the subsidiaries had issued any listed securities at the
end of the reporting period. The Group had no subsidiaries which
have materials non-controlling interests for the years ended 31

December 2014 and 2013.

- (EXGEE W

fi -

s -

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

RFEHKR REMBAREEITEMN LTE
A BE-_ZE-—NWNER-_FE—=F+=ZH=1+—
HIEFE @ AEBEWENE QR HEREANFEER
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20. GOODWILL 20. &
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
COST N
Balance at 1 January R—A—BM4&s 20,456 20,456
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ~ Z&TRfEE1E
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—Hr&EH% (20,456) (20,456)
CARRYING AMOUNTS fREE
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—HB8%&s% - -
Goodwill acquired through business combination during BHE_ZETZNF+_A=+T—HILEFER
the year ended 31 December 2009 had been allocated to BEBEHBENEEE DN %EEE%%T’E&
film production and distribution and artiste management BTURBEANEERSEARN([EHEE
cash-generating unit (the “Film CGU”), which is a EEBN] RAIMESH) - ETRER
reportable segment, for impairment testing. N
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the gross amount n= NER-—E—=ZF+=-_A=+—
of goodwill and its full provision for impairment loss have S Fﬁ%@i%ﬁﬁﬁéa‘ BEBBEREDR

been written off from the consolidated statement of AEBRERE AR HRER A -
financial position of the Group.

1 1 National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
5 Annual Report 2014
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 21.

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as

R E K<Y

AEENAEEEMNREFBOT ¢

follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Unlisted investment, at cost JELEMIRE - HEAE 11,400 9,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and SMEWEER BB R
other comprehensive income, HEmEmEmBA
net of dividends received BRE WIS (2,779) (448)

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

8,621 8,552

AEEGEERNRERROFBOT

Proportion of
nominal
Principal value of issued  Proportion
Place of place of Class of capital held of voting
Name of Entity Form of entity incorporation operation  shares held by the Group ~ powerheld  Principal activities
FEEEEN
BRTRA FRRE
ERER 570 EMA LR EEBY  FERGER HELH Blhl  TEEH
KEMBEYREE  Incomorated PRC PRC Registered capital of 60% 60%  Cinema Operation
ERERAT LA el el HK$19,000,000 (indirect) (ndiect) BB
Zhuhaishi Guoyi Yingshi fax (%) (%)
Management Co,, Ltd* 19,000,000 7
. For identification only . EHER
Summarised financial information of the joint BB EW G R

venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint
venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRS.

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

BRAKEE2CENMBEMZHIIRN
TX - UTHBEMBREEEEXRIER
BB RELEANGEROMBHRRATHE
B
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Summarised financial information of the joint
venture (Continued)

21.

REBEEHTRE (F)

AR EOR L (7))

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method BEPENLERE P BRI AL AERE

in these consolidated financial statements. N
2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT
Current assets MENEE 2,697 710
Non-current assets EMBEE 18,737 8,192
Current liabilities nRBBEE 6,406 472
Non-current liabilities EmBAE - =

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
1 53 Annual Report 2014
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The above loss for the year include the following:

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 21. FELENRE (£)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of the joint FEAEMEERIME (&)
venture (Continued)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the LiEERBESEBFENATIER
following:
2014 2013
—ZF-MmF —F—=f
HK$000 HK$000
FET FiET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEEE 1,933 363
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade & RIBE (TRIEENE S
and other payables and provisions) SRIA N ELAth [ 1< SR IA LA R ) - =
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding ERBEHARE(TEREENES
trade and other payables and provisions) — FXIE K H il JE (< FUE DA K B 5 ) - =
Revenue WA 3,967 =
Loss for the year AEEEIE (2,331) (448)
Other comprehensive income for the year — AN E E 2 EIA - -
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2EBALRE (2,331) (448)
Dividends received from the joint venture ~ AFEEHAEDE
during the year IER A AR B - =

BlAFEEERBEATIAR

2014 2013

—ET-mEF —E—=F

HK$000 HK$000

FET FHIT

Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (98) =

Interest income FLEWA 10 2

Interest expense FERAXZ = =
Income tax expense PSR

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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22. FILM PRODUCTS 22. ¥
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FET
Cost: AR :
Balance at 1 January R—HA— AW 87,349 65,634
Transfer from film production in progress EHRAERER (W29
(Note 23) 12,543 21,715
Balance at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H&&EH 99,892 87,349
Accumulated amortisation and 2t BERBERSSE !
impairment losses:
Balance at 1 January H— A —BM&s 79,961 65,634
Provided for the year REFFR 7,388 14,327
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B0N%&EH 87,349 79,961
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H&&EH 12,543 7,388

Amortisation charge of approximately HK$7,388,000
(2013: approximately HK$14,327,000) with respect to

B

i A28 ) 48 £ =2 49 7,388,000 7% 7T
T =4 #)14,327,000/5C) EFF A

film rights has been included in cost of film production mAEBREEMEEABARFTOEZRIENK

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other PN
comprehensive income.
23. FILM PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS 23. 7rH

2014 2013

—E-MF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAET

Balance at 1 January R—A—BMEH 8,005 19,398

Additions NE 4,538 10,322

Transfer to film products (note 22) wEET A (MiE22) (12,543) (21,715)

Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—Ho4&#H - 8,005

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. JEWHE 5 »IHE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FHBT
Trade receivables JEWE H3RIE 765 3,683

The Group generally allows a credit period from 30
days to 90 days (2013: 30 days to 90 days) to its trade
customers. The following is the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts,
at the reporting date:

AEEREZEFEFPIEENEES —HKAI0
HEQH(ZZE—=% :30HZEQ90H) - &
WE 5 HIE (MBRRERRE) NS B8R
BT

2014 2013

—E—NF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

0 to 60 days 0Z60H 558 3,228
61 to 90 days 612 90H - 73
91 to 180 days 912180 H 7 382
Over 180 days B#1180 H 200 =
765 3,683

At 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$558,000 (2013: approximately HK$3,301,000) were
neither past due nor impaired. These balances related to
certain customers whom there was no recent history of
default.

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$207,000 (2013:
approximately HK$382,000) which were past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. Trade receivables that are past due
but not impaired relate to a number of customers and
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

R-ZZE-—NF+_A=+—H EKRE
5 RIAKIB58,000 8 TL(—F—=F &
3,301,00078 7T ) M A B I EIR(E - %F
REERTH BT Y B S AL S B TR P
B8 -

R ERERE(ES#207,000/8 7T (=
T — =4 : #9382,000/8 7T ) # FE R IE R
HEADAY  AEEYESZFEBRIER
BEEERE EBHEIRRENEKRES
REFRETEF  MESARBERZF

FHEEERYEERNEE - ZFERIDK
RAF 2HUKE - BEARZEESRIERE
B - AREYERZS SRS E R

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, W 5 IHE (&)
The following is the ageing of trade receivables which are RIERH B B @ BEYRBENERE SR
past due but not impaired based on the due date: THHBRER AN T
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1-90 days 1HZE90H 7 382
Over 90 days im0 H 200 -
207 382
25. INVENTORIES 25. f+ 8
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—2-IF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Food and beverage BN 553 =
Merchandise P& 1,087 1,164
General operating supplies and others — R EE R EHA 2,463 =
4,103 1,164
1 57 National Arts Enti:iilr:;:e:;t sg;jt (;l(,l)[’:lire Group Limited
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26. THFFSRIE ~ #45 F A RE Wk |

RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
REE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F —E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Other receivables (note)  E b FEM R IE
(F3E) 98,386 100,947 = =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments B EIE 17,075 4,893 177 494
Rental deposits HEHRS 2,752 2,297 - =
Other deposits HEmiRe 384 851 65 -
Other receivables E At fEYRIE 7,364 3,644 565 224
27,575 11,685 807 718
125,961 112,632 807 718
Note: BiaE -

The amount due from the local government company is repayable
in 40 years. As at 31 December 2014, the consideration amount
approximately HK$98,386,000 (2013: HK$100,947,000) were
recognised as other receivables under non-current assets.

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

BT BFARMNKRAEERST+F-
R-FE-ME+-A=+—0 RELEH
98,386,000/ 7T(—F — =% : 100,947,000/&7T)
EEREMEKFRE IR E A ET R
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/BANK 27. H&KBE&SMIERH, SITEX
OVERDRAFTS
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and RERBFERERKRBITIRFERESIN
in hand and bank overdrafts. RIRITES ©
Cash at banks earn interests at the floating rates based RITR ST RFEIRER T HRITFERF
on the daily bank deposits rates. Bank overdrafts carrying EMEMZEEERFE « RITEX ZFFE
interest at market rate which range from 0.75% per ENREBETHEBFER0.75% EEHBRTT
annum below HKD Prime Rate to 1% per annum over REFEMI%(ZE—=F : T)HMEHF
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (2013: Nil). EEHE °
At 31 December 2014, included in cash and RZE—WOF+_A=+—H  KEEHR
cash equivalents of the Group was approximately S RFECEHFEEE BIEUARKTERTR
HK$2,554,000 (2013: approximately HK$1,195,000) of RPEZHBITNRITEHKLFERSL
bank balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in 2,554,000 70 (=T — =4 : 491,195,000
the PRC and on hands. Which are not freely convertible BIL) c ARBETERLRAEEME -
into other currencies.
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. WEAHE 5k IH
The Group was granted by its suppliers’ credit periods AEBEEAMHERK TI0HEOR(ZE
from 30 days to 60 days (2013: 30 days to 60 days). The —=%F :30BE60R)ZEH - BNESZK
following is the ageing analysis of trade payables at the HRImEBRRESITAT -
reporting date:
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—EB-lmF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 71 -
61 to 90 days 612 90H 46 3
91 to 180 days 912180 H - 1
Over 180 days B 180 H 41 41
158 45
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. H:fls JfE £F 5k 18 K g T8
The Group The Company
REE b /NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F —E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FAT
Accruals FEEtE A 11,004 5,005 838 1,109
Receipts in advance TEUWRIB 272 964 - =
Other payables (note) R ANE e
(P E) 56,426 210,485 18 1,933
67,702 216,454 856 3,042
Note: BiaE -
Other payables mainly represented construction costs of film EMEMNREFEEEN IRAEZRAEEH R
studio and hotel payables to the constructors. BEMTEER -
LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY 30. — [ B Bk 2> ] i B
The Group AR
Loan from a related company represented short-term —HEABARNERABHRRNARIERITES
interest bearing loans granted to NA Entertainment by HGBRMEE(DEEED BEBERFZE NN
First Credit Limited (“First Credit”), of which Mr. Sin Kwok E-—GERYBARARTEF—EADET
Lam (“Mr. Sin”), a non-executive director of the Company, BEERENTHMEER - ZERFFRE
has significant influence. The loan is interest bearing at M (ZE—ZF 1 10%E12%) * AR —
11% (2013: 10% to 12%) per annum, repayable within FREEWAARRRERFEER(MFE48) o
one year and are secured by a corporate guarantee
granted by the Company (note 48).
LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER 31. —AMRAEK
The Group and The Company AR [ e A A T

The loans is due to Mr. Sin, which is unsecured, interest
bearing at the rates ranging from 8.25% to 13% per
annum, repayable on demand.

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

ZERKRBAELE BEEF . BNE
8.25% & 13% 2 FHEE B » WHNR E Kk
Big -
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32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES  32. FEW ~WENF b} & 2 W) 5k 08

The Company
¥ NN

2014 2013

—2-IF —F=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Amount due from subsidiaries JEURBH B A R FIE 1,473,678 1,173,251
Less: provision for impairment W R B (62,750) (62,750)
1,410,928 1,110,501

REBE-—Z-—ME+-A=+—RAILFE -
EELENBARGENEE R EESE
M R B A VAR 2 B o

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors
reviewed the carrying amount of the amounts due from
subsidiaries with reference to the business operated by
these subsidiaries and their net asset values.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, BRAERKTENMEARZEAELKE - £
interest-free and repayable on demand. BRNAREREEE -
33. BORROWINGS 33. i
The Group The Company
EE ANAF]
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F —E-F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FTHET F&T
Current liabilities REEE
Bank loans IRITER
- secured (note (a)) - B (ME @) 8,500 = - =
Other borrowings HifEE
— secured (note (b)) - BEA (M b) 50,000 = 50,000 =
Other borrowings HipfEE
—unsecured (note (c)) - IR (KH3E () 58,100 45,000 58,100 45,000
116,600 45,000 108,100 45,000
Non-current liabilities FEREIEE
Other borrowings HMEE
—unsecured (note (c) - EIEA (FIFE(C)) 45,000 = 18,600 =
161,600 45,000 126,700 45,000

161
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33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

33. 8 (E)

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

AEBEEANIAT BHRAERE

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ N/NC|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F —E2-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FHAT THER TAT
Carrying amount AR THRAER
repayable: ZIREE -
Within one year —FR 116,600 45,000 108,100 45,000
More than one vear, —F A F
but not exceeding BTRBBME
two years 10,000 — - S
More than two years, R L
but not more BTBBRE
than five years 35,000 - 18,600 -
161,600 45,000 126,700 45,000
Notes: MisE -

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the bank
loans of the Group were secured by the pledged of
the leasehold land and buildings of the Group. The
bank loans of the Group bear interest rates at 2.75%
(2013: Nil) per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate and all denominated in HKS.

Other borrowings are secured by the share charge
over of the entire share capital of certain wholly-
owned subsidiaries and interest bearing at the rates
9.5% (2013: Nil) per annum and all denominated in
HK$.

Other borrowings are unsecured and interest
bearing at the rates from ranging from 4% to 15%
(2013: 10%) per annum from ten third parties (2013:
three) and all denominated in HKS$.

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

REBEZZE—NF+=ZA=1+—H1t
FE AFEZBRTEFHATEERZ
HELTHREFEERR - REEZR
TEFIEBEARITRAEREIN2.75%
TE=F:B)Z2FNERFE &
B LABTTEHE ©

R EHET2RMB AR 22
BAMBR G MR IEER - LR FE
0.5% (—F—=: F)5tE - R
TLAHE -

HiEERETHR(ZE—Z=F: =
B)E=ZF  BERKE - WEN T 4%
E215% (ZF—=%F : 10%) 2 FEFI =X
ETE  2EABITAHE -
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34. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION
The Group

Future finance lease payments arising from the leasing of
investment properties are due as follows:

34. BB ERE

g

RiREMEREEENARRBENRNOT ¢

Minimum
lease
payment Interest Present value
2014 2014 2014
BRERHEENK FIE RE
—B-mE —E-mE —E-ng
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FET
Not later than one year TER—F 5,185 1,961 3,224
Later than one year but not EBR—%E
later than five years TNERRF 7,993 7,802 191
Later than five years BRAF 61,732 45,898 15,834
Balance at 31 December 2014 R -Z—MFE+_A
=t+t—Hz#&H% 74,910 55,661 19,249
2013 2013 2013
—T—=F —E—=F —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 3,412 2,016 1,396
Later than one year but not EBR—%1E
later than five years TNERTF 8,192 8,017 175
Later than five years BRAESF 63,491 47,164 16,327
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A
=t+t—Hz&#% 75,095 57,197 17,898

163
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34. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION (Continued) 34. MBME RS (E)

The Group (Continued) AREM ()
The present values of future lease payments are analysed as: RREENHOBREI A -
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiT
Current liabilities mENEME 3,224 1,396
Non-current liabilities JERBaE 16,025 16,502
19,249 17,898
35. BONDS 35. i
The Group and The Company A [ Je A A ]
On 23 May 2013, the Company issued the bonds with RZE—=FRAZ+=H  XARIREX
an aggregate principal amount of HK$78,775,000 (the AAHE—ZBIEERBR_T—=FTH
“Bonds”) at par value in accordance with the conditional TARBEIMHBBRGEEE KB HETE - RE
placing and underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013 BHTASBELT8,7750008 T EH
entered into between the Company and an independent ([EF]) - EFHFREITEBRFTRFRE
placing agent. The Bonds have a maturity of 2 years from BFEEERTS%  MEBRAZRFLEESF
the date of issue and bear coupon interest at 7.5% per WHAR MR B o R HESNE
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. MEHRENSE  ARIBEHEZEER 28X
A default rate of 12% per annum will be charged on any N EBREFE12% EOFEZNAFE o &
sum due and payable under the Bonds from the due date FLABILEHE ©

to the date of actual payment in full. The Bonds were
denominated in HK$.

EE I EMARAF
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35. BONDS (Continued) 35. &% (&)
The Group and The Company (Continued) AR R AN ()
In addition, same amount of unlisted warrants (the ot BERESFFEARITHEREEMNIEL
“Warrants”) were issued (for no additional payment) to the TR ([ R ) (BZEREIMIR) -
bondholders who are entitled to subscribe in aggregate I TR SN B TR RERE A BT M
up to HK$78,775,000 for the warrant shares at the A ZRBEETRABREERH 01158 T
subscription price of HK$0.115 per warrant share within RIS £ /&% 78,775,000 JT K R IR 4 75
2 years from the date of issue of the Warrants. As a result & - BRARFTRZZE—NFLAELAR
of the share consolidation announced by the Company mzRBEeEHTRDEMH]D) RARFTRE
on 7 July 2014 (“Share Consolidation”) and the rights —OFEN\REB A2 #ER (TR ) A RIR
issue announced by the Company on 4 August 2014 BRIRER 2 R G - REEBREIRRA
(“Rights Issue”) and in accordance with the terms and AREBRRAD 0SB LR AT RBIRIER
conditions of the Warrants, adjustment to the subscription B 1.001 BILELER - RIREFAIRE
price of the Warrants from HK$0.115 per warrant share FHoR - MRREZERESFA 2D
to HK$1.091 per warrant share has become effective. A &IK © 88 575,000 8 Tk E TR E 8T A
The Warrants are detachable from the Bonds and the DHEE -
Warrants and the Bonds can be transferred separately in
whole or in part in minimum amount of HK$575,000 or
integral multiples thereof.

1 6 5 National Arts Emi:im?; sg?t (;l(,l)l":lire Group Limited
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BONDS (Continued)
The Group and The Company (Continued)

The Company may redeem the Bonds (and the Warrants)
in whole or in part (in minimum amount of HK$575,000
or integral multiples thereof), at the principal amount
together with interests accrued up to the date of
redemption at anytime before maturity. The directors of
the Company considered this early redemption option is
closely related to the host instrument.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, on initial
recognition, the fair value of the Bonds was calculated by
discounting future repayments at an estimated discount
rate of 12.68%. The transaction costs incurred for issuing
the Bonds and Warrants were allocated in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds in the amounts
of approximately HK$4,545,000 and HK$432,000
respectively. Subsequently, interest expense on the Bonds
was calculated using the effective interest method by
applying an effective interest rate of 16.57% after taking
account of transaction costs. The proceeds allocated to
the Warrants and recognised in the warrant reserve in
equity were approximately HK$6,831,000.

35.

BRI EEBRAF

—B-NEER

% (&)
ARG RARNT ()

AARAREBATE AR EZASRERE
EREBEHSIENESTE - B2 EKE
a7 (MR ER) (RIKEHAR 575,000
BTHETEER) AAREERR It
ERFEOEEEET TAEATYIRMIE -

REBE_Z—=F+-A=+—HILFE -
R L HERE - EHEHR R ER12.68% 8
HEFT IR ERREREMAE - BT
BHERRAREBEENR HH AR ILRET
DEEHFTEFIERBLLOEITHE - HRIA
% 4,545,0007% T & 432,000/ 7T E 1% -
BEAFNERRHHANE - RERMNEREE
1657 % MEBEBRFMERFERELZH - pEBRE
R HE R RN RREEFENER R ERL
FT{S 378474 6,831,000 8T °
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35. BONDS (Continued) 35. &% (&)
The Group and The Company (Continued) AR R AN ()
The movement for the period on the Bonds was as NEENESNEBNT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&% 74,182 =
Fair value of liability components on AR A E D
initial recognition EOPNR =] - 71,944
Transaction cost allocated to NEEBEE
the liability component R = (4,545)
Interest expense (note 9) BT H (FIFE9) 11,673 6,783
Interest paid during the year FREAFIE (5,909) =
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B24&6% 79,946 74,182
Carrying amount repayable AR—FRNEEZRAEB
within one year 79,946 S
More than one year but not —F P HETBIBRF
exceeding two years - 74,182
79,946 74,182
The fair value of Bonds amounted to approximately EH 2 DA EHET9,63500087T ° EHZ
HK$79,635,000. The fair values of the Bonds is calculated AAETRBREENE16.73% MR 2R
using cash flows discounted at rate on the borrowings EREBAE - WIARABEERE_R -
rate of 16.783% and are within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group and The Company

CB3

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$92,000,000
(“CB3”) at par value in accordance with the conditional
placing and underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013
entered into between the Company and an independent
placing agent. The CB3 has a maturity of 2 years from
the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 7.5% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears.
A default rate of 12% per annum will be charged on
any sum due and payable under the CB3 from the due
date to the date of actual payment in full. The CB3 was
denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CB3, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.115 per conversion
share. As a result of the Share Consolidation and the
Rights Issue and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the CB3, adjustment to the conversion
price of CB3 from HK$0.115 per conversion share to
HK$1.091 per conversion share has become effective.
The outstanding principal amount of the CB3 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$575,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB3 up to
and including the date falling on the 7th day immediately
prior to the maturity date.

The Company may redeem the CB3 in whole or in part
(in minimum amount of HK$575,000 or integral multiples
thereof), at the principal amount together with interests
accrued up to the date of redemption at anytime before
maturity. The directors of the Company considered this
early redemption option is closely related to the host
liability component and is not accounted for separately.
CB8 therefore contains liability and equity components.

36. W WMREF

ACER B B A A )

FHEH AT BR
RZZE—=FFEA=+=0 " AREREXE
ANEE-—EEUEERER_T—=FNAH
TRBFIIMBERHEEERBHERE - RE
BT A £ 4% 592,000,000 %8 ST R AT A%
BEH ([E=HAIRKRES]) - B=H K
BERETHHRAMERE  §FEXA
7.5%  FEESHRFWEGFRERIMNH
AT B o WARBEZTE = AT MRE ST
MEAEN 2% - ARIARZEREZHEX
NHABZEF12%HENFEZAFE - F
—HATRARESH B TTEE ©

FoMABMBEFN A RESTRABK
011587 - AR —RREEREMR
R o RN & Of RAEAUA RARIRE =#E 7]
B ES 2 R R G - B R ES
MEBRERERABBN0ISEBTHAER
BRABBRH1.01BTELER - BE=
RATHAE S 1T A e 2 R AT RE S
AMAMFE LR (BEZA)HE £=4
AMBESFHAEEASE(RESBEAR
575,000/8 TS H TR EE) ] 2 #f kA0 &
Rk IR AD o

AARATRE R AR RIRASEERE
ZEEHEAIEOERTFE - BB 2 EskEs
DE=H I MRES (HEETEE R 575,000
BILTRETEEHR) - ARAEERE ' I
BREEDEEERTFAEHSAEEETHA
FERIDFEAR - Bt - F=H R EH
BEABERERTD o

EE I EMARAF
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36. AIBES (2)
The Group and The Company (Continued) AR R AN ()
CB3 (Continued) B A B IR AR (B
The fair value of the liability component of the CB3 was FEoMAMRESFEEIHD IR EITHIERA
estimated at the issuance date using an equivalent EBERENENRERSNRAEMIS N X
market interest rate for a similar bond with call option. The B EARE  FrSE(ANETE =LA
residual amount (being the difference between the net BREFHMERIEFEEAES AR
proceeds of issuance of the CB3 and the fair value of the BERMNER) HIETEAERID Rt ATJ#
liability component) is assigned as the equity component REHFEEFEHEETAOERAN - AEHOH
and is included in equity heading convertible bond equity BIRBEN ARG E -
reserve. The liability component is subsequently measured
at amortised cost.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, on initial REBEE_E—=F+_A=+—HILFE "
recognition, the fair value of the liability component of the RO HERE - F-HARRESFAEI
CB3 was calculated using future repayments discounted DHA R EIZ12.68% KT ITIREITE R
at an estimated discount rate of 12.68%. The transaction RERBEMTE - BITE=HATRRES
costs incurred for the issuance of the CB3 were allocated EENR KA IRBIAD B RIER
into the liability component and the equity component BHOIDERBES S RERED - ©F
of approximately HK$5,270,000 and HK$500,000 2 Bl 49 55,270,000 JT & 500,000 7 JT ©
respectively in proportion to the allocation of the gross Hig  FoitT R ESFERAERFEELR
proceeds. Subsequently, interest expense on the CB3 is 16.53% M ERFRFEF B H - R¥ZP
calculated using the effective interest method by applying HRE - EoH T RRESERBOHOEER
effective interest rate of 16.53%. On initial recognition, the /57,978,000 7T ©
amount of equity component of CB3 was approximately
HK$7,978,000.
In October and November 2013, CB3 with aggregate RZE—=FTHART—H A&BBA
principal amounts of HK$8,050,000 were converted into 8,050,000/ T FE = Al IR EH IR K,
70,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in total at a BMEFROISE THERAEXRQFAEH
conversion price of HK$0.115 each. As at 31 December 70,000,000l L% - R —=F+=H
2013, the outstanding principal amount of the CB3 is =+—H F=HUBRREFHREETS
HK$83,950,000. %65 83,950,000,8 7T °
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The Group and The Company (Continued)

CB3 (Continued)

In August 2014, the Company has early redeemed the
CBS3 with aggregate principal amounts of approximately
HK$19,550,000 by cash at approximately HK$19,944,000
(being the principal amount of approximately
HK$19,550,000 and accrued interests of approximately
HK$394,000). A loss on redemption of the CB3 of
approximately HK$2,304,000, which represented the
difference between the redemption price allocated to
liability component of the CB3 and the carrying amount
of the liability component of the CB3 at the redemption
date, has been credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2014. The CB3 was valued at the redemption date by a
qualified professional valuer. The fair values of the liability
component and the equity component of the redeemed
CB3 at redemption date were derived by means of the
same method used at issuance date.

CB4

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of remaining
equity interests in HRL and EPL as detailed in note 47,
the Company issued convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$420,000,000 (“CB4”) on 2
October 2013. The CB4 has a maturity of 3 years from
the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 4% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A
default rate of 8% per annum will be charged on any sum
due and payable under the CB4 from the due date to the
date of actual payment in full. The CB4 was denominated
in HK$.

36. AIIBES (2)

ARG R AR ()

FEHM AT BIRES ()
RZE—WOFENA AR NBREH
19,944,000 7% 7T (BN AN £ 584 19,550,000 4
TN 25 F B 49394,000 0)  IRFE L
R 4AFE#) 519,550,000 8 TLHI 58 = #t Al 3
BER -BHET—NHF+=-A=+—HIE
FEMNGAZABERANBFASE =LA #
BB %5 K fE B 518 492,304,000 T © HE
ROBETE=MHAIBRRESFABELINELD
BEE =4[ fkiES B &S H N IED 3 H
HEREENERE - FHABRRESFERE
EIHH RS ERBEMEMETHE - 2F
EIE=#rr]mRELAET S RiERDBI R
BRI BN ARBE NS BENETH KA
B FER 5 RS -

SV ] SRR 1
EREBERRKFFRR(FE LK
FAT) EBBRARBZOROKE - ARA
RZZE-—Z=ZF+A_BETLSEER
420,000,000 7% 7T &9 7] # B & 75 ([ 56 P4t 7]
mkEs]) BEEBATBRBEZFVETA
HEF =538 BEEXR4% " FIEE
BRFAXESFHMRIATANE - AR
RES S AL AT R S E MBI IR N &
B ARIHAEER2BN ARRESF
8% K KM KT AHI B - E AL AR AR E
FFABTCAHE ©

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok 3 0 5 e A M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E_F—P4E+H=+—H IL4EJE

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36. WBEIR ()

The Group and The Company (Continued)

CB¢4 (Continued)

The conversion price of the CB4, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.112 per conversion
share. As a result of the Share Consolidation and the
Rights Issue and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the CB4, adjustment to the conversion
price of the CB4 from HK$0.112 per conversion share to
HK$1.063 per conversion share has become effective.
The outstanding principal amount of the CB4 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$420,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB4 up to
and including the date falling on the 7th day immediately
prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB4 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issuance of new shares of the Company
at the conversion price on the due day of the interest
payment in lieu of payment by cash. Such interest
conversion arrangement is only applicable to the 4% per
annum interest payment and is not applicable to the 8%
default interest payment. The Company may redeem the
CB4 at any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part (in minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an integral
multiple thereof) at the principal amount of such CB4
thereof plus interest accrued thereon up to the actual date
of redemption.

The CB4 has been valued at the issuance date by a
qualified professional valuer. The directors of the Company
considered the interest conversion option due to interest
conversion arrangement embedded in the CB4 meets
the definition of equity instruments of the Company, and
therefore is classified as equity and presented separately
from the liability components of the CB4. The directors of
the Company also considered the early redemption option
embedded in the CB4 is closely related to the host liability
component and therefore is not accounted for separately.
Accordingly, CB4 contains liability and equity components.

ARG RARAT ()

SFE A o] PR 5 ()

FUHAmRESFHLBREATRLBRR
011287 AR —BRREEARMR
PR o FRNAR(D & OF RAEAR A AR IR S POt a]
BIRES 2 G MG - EO R ES
MAEBREREBRABBG0I12BITARES
B AR5 1.063B L EEER - BE N
BARRES BT HREZEENE
+ B (B3EZA) 8 - FOALARRESN
REEBEAX SR (HIESTAE A 420,000 7T
S EHSTEEE ) Al 2 I E o B IR KRR

{/\ o

SO ATBRESNFAEAGERALARER
KEMNBIHAN L RESBIE LEITA
REF RO RAEAFE (2EHE D)
URBRSMR - WA B LR REAR
WEN KL% A OF B KA E A 8% E
KR, o 82 )R] 7 B HA A A fa] B M 2 55 7Y
frAgREFN A EERNEEERERR
HIR LR RIS - BRE 2Rk ai B it
Al ¥ B 7 (AR 1K & BB 78 /5 420,000 78 7T 3K
HEBER) -

>~JUIE

FORATBBEESFERNETEHHSERE
EHEMETHE ARFEERR - EO
AR E S NS A BRI TR R
BEENTAARRRATANES  HEH
R MRS RREESN R A D D
FZ25 - ARAREFTRA - HEHt AT #&]
BFAENEREREERETAENY A
EEIBRE - BUA T FRARK o Bt
LRI ESF S B AEMERE D

=

#
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
The Group and The Company (Continued)

CB4 (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the CB4 was
estimated at the issuance date using an equivalent
market interest rate for a similar bond with call option.
The residual amount (being the difference between the fair
value of the CB4 at issuance date and the fair value of the
liability component on initial recognition) is assigned as
the equity component and is included in equity heading
convertible bond equity reserve. The liability component is
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, on initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability component of the
CB4 was calculated using future repayments discounted
at an estimated discount rate of 15.63%. Subsequently,
interest expense on the CB4 is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying effective interest rate
of 16.47%. On initial recognition, the amount of equity
component of CB4 was approximately HK$120,540,000.

36. AIIBES (2)

ARG R AR ()

SBVIHEA] BRR A F (AE)
FOHAREESFAERINAAEENE
TTEMRANARENRENRBESNRSE
TIGA EEITAE - Mg B (BIE T a
BERESNZETEHNAAEREESI N
NEERAKO QA ENER) IHIKSEDED
7 REFARRE S ERFEAERE T o
BEID ERIZEHKAGTE

REZE—3 -—:¢+ A=+—HBLEFE -
RIS ERE - FOALATRRESEERD
Eﬁ&ﬂﬁ?ﬁzw 63% M ET T E RITIH K
R METE o Hig - FOBLAIRRESRK
FMEFRAYXER16.47T%NERNE - KAE
BRFEEGE - RO HRE - SN al g
IR & FH = E 5 82 58 495 120,540,000 74
L
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36.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
The Group and The Company (Continued)

CB¢4 (Continued)

In October and November 2013, the Company has early
redeemed the CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of
approximately HK$44,940,000 by cash at approximately
HK$45,091,000 (being the principal amount of
approximately HK$44,940,000 and accrued interests of
approximately HK$151,000). A gain on redemption of the
CB4 of approximately HK$1,395,000. In August 2014, the
Company has early redeemed the CB4 with aggregate
principal amounts of approximately HK$215,460,000
by cash at approximately HK$208,996,000 which Mr.
Sin offered to waive the accrued interest up to the date
of repayment and to provide a discount of 3% on the
principal amount). A loss on redemption of the CB4 of
approximately HK$25,252,000, which represented the
difference between the redemption price allocated to
liability component of the CB4 and the carrying amount
of the liability component of the CB4 at the redemption
date, has been credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2013 and 2014. The CB4 was valued at the redemption
date by a qualified professional valuer. The fair values
of the liability component and the equity component of
the redeemed CB4 at redemption date were derived by
means of the same method used at issuance date.

Included in CB4 are amounts of approximately
HK$40,602,000 and HK$33,589,000 due to Mr. Sin
and Miss Law Po Yee, the director of the Company
respectively.

36. AIBES (2)

ARG RARAT ()

SEVYHE ] B 2 (4E)
RZZE—=FTART—A  XRFINAESE
#345,091,000 % 7T (BN 4S5 88 49 44,940,000
BT R 25 EH151,0008 ) RRED
A& 48 E 4 A 44,940,000 T Y 55 PO 4t ]
MRES - BEZENAATRRES 2 Wm
#97/31,395,0008 7L - R=ZZFE—MFENA -
A B LAIE 4 # 208,996,000 78 7T ( H A%
EEREHEZEEAPLENRAF B RIE
HASEIRMITN) REBERI A BT
215,460,000/ 7T H) 5 L AT AR (B 5 © &L
E_E—=ER-_FE—NE+-_A=+—H
IFFEMNGFEE2AKRERAEFTAFE LA
IR EH R E R EE ) 25,252,000/8 7T * 8
ERAIETEOIL AT R ESFA G S NE
EEEENHAIRKRESBELSRERA
HMEREENERE - SN TRRESER
fEC B AR a BN R MERMETHE - B
BRI ZEmML AT mRERAET S RiERHD
RER BN ARENEBRETHHAE
MR AZES -

FH AT RREEBRED HIEN ARG ES
SRR EE 7/ MERIFRIE 40,602,000 7T
1% 33,589,000 7T °
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36. AIIBES (2)
The Group and The Company (Continued) A AN ()
CB4 (Continued) SEPIHE o] B 25 (4E)
The movement of the liability components of the BRI AN RERERO TR ES B EE
convertible bonds recognised in the statement of financial DEVEEINT ¢

position are as follows:

CB3 CB4 Total
£ kg
AR ES AR ES st
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHT
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%F
—RA—Bz&H% - - -
Fair value of liability components BEHDAR T HERE
on initial recognition RARE 84,022 309,656 393,678
Transaction cost allocated to ST EaEE S
the liability component B Z AR (5,270) = (5,270)
Effective interest expenses (note 9)  BEEFI BRI (F1:E9) 7,909 12,614 20,523
Converted into ordinary shares HiaaERk (7,365) = (7,365)
Early redemption during the year FRRFEER - (33,588) (33,588)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E—=F
TZA=t+—Hz#&H 79,296 288,682 367,978
Effective interest expenses (note 9) B F EF S (BH79) 10,939 38,606 49,545
Early redemption during the year FRIREED (17,557) (173,466) (191,023)
Waiver of interest of convertible bond %A% AT A& (& 551 8. - (7,178) (7,178)
Interest paid during the year FREFE (6,296) (6,384) (12,680)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-Z—NF
+ZA=+—Hz#&t 66,382 140,260 206,642
CB3 CB4 Total
ER T 5™ =4t kg
Carrying amount repayable EEBZRAEE ARRES AR ES wst
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’'000
FAT T FHT
Within one year —FR 66,382 - 66,382
More than one year but not —F LA BT BB F
exceeding two years - 140,260 140,260
66,382 140,260 206,642
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36. AIBES (2)
The Group and The Company (Continued) AREME R AN ()
CB¢4 (Continued) BV o] B R 5% (4E)
The fair values of the liability components of CB3 and RZZF—OFEF+ZA=+—HE=H#ABRK
CB4 at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately BEAFREMIATRBRESFABELIHARE
HK$67,338,000 and approximately HK$150,023,000 7 R4 & 67,338,000 7% 7T & 150,023,000 75
respectively. The fair values of the liability components of JC ° B = H AT R AR E 5 K B DUt AT R AR (B 5
CB3 and CB4 are calculated using cash flows discounted BEBOHARETIDRRABEREEFRE
at rate based on the borrowings rate of 7.09% and HIBAIRZ 7.00% K. 8.16% B IRMIR M 25
8.16% respectively and are within level 2 of the fair value o WIARRBIERNEZR -
hierarchy.
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37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The Group and The Company (Continued)

The Group

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax rates

applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by

37. WIEBIH A

ARG R AR ()

N L

ELEHRBERAAEENETEERIREAN
MRRAT MR RDARE [ OB R T VE 2 BUR A -

TIHRAREEERHEERREBERER

the Group and movements thereon during the year. FRREE) -
Change in
fair value of
investment Revaluation
properties  of properties Total
REMHEZ
ARERE YEE “wEE
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FAT
At 1 January 2013 R-—Z—=F—H—H 34,331 - 34,331
Charged to profit or loss for the year AANFEE B AR 6,543 = 6,543
Charged to properties revaluation — R¥IESEEHFEER
reserve i3 - 84,853 84,853
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—=F
1 January 2014 +—A=+—H8K
—ET-NFE—-A—H 40,874 84,853 125,727
Charged to profit or loss for the year AN EI8zE AR 5,924 - 5,924
Transfer to Revaluation of properties 28 &= ¥ & 14 (46,798) 46,798 =
Charged to properties revaluation RIS (ERFHEER
reserve Bk - 28,105 28,105
At 31 December 2014 N-E—NEF
+=A=+—~H - 159,756 159,756

BRI EEBRAF
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37.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
The Group and The Company

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately HK$
248,933,000 (2013: approximately HK$167,374,000)
available for offsetting against future profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Included in the
estimated unused tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$36,649,000 (2013: approximately HK$25,714,000)
that will expire within 5 years. Other estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$212,284,000 (2013:
approximately HK$141,660,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of these estimated unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

37. BHEBLIHAM (F)

ACER B B A A )

R|BEBRR - AEEBBHBGARBARIEE
18 #49248,933,0008 L( =T — = F : 4
167,374,000 7T ) * o] A{EEHE £ &5 18
AR Z AR M o e KRB ARIBEE
f A 18 #4936,649,000/8 L ( =T — =4 :
#425,714,00087C) R A FERNEE o HMh
T R B A E5184212,284,000/8 L ( =&
— =4 : #9141,660,000/8 7T ) A] E R Hi &5
Ko I ARICH FIZE ATER - M E LR
EREEARLEHIEEE -
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. A
Number of Shares Share Capital
ROEE [N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mEF =5 —2-ImEF —E——F
’000 ‘000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T Tk FTET TET
Ordinary shares of FhEE
HK$0.10 each 0.01%7T
(2013:HK$0.01 each) (ZE—=%:
FREE0.01
BT KT A%
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January »—A—H 60,000,000 60,000,000 600,000 600,000
Share Consolidation Bir Ao
(note (b)) (B3E (o) (54,000,000) - (540,000) -
31 December B+=—A=+—H 6,000,000 60,000,000 60,000 600,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR

At 1 January »—A—8 4,126,270 4,056,270 41,262 40,562
Shares issued under upon  HIRETHRRESFT

conversion of BITHIIRD

convertible bonds (PiF%E (@)

(note (a)) - 70,000 - 700
Share Consolidation Bt & Bt (5 (o)

(note (b)) (3,713,643) - - =
Shares issued under REBHRETRG

Rights Issue (note (c)) (FiF3E(c)) 2,475,762 = 247,577 -
31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,888,389 4,126,270 288,839 41,262

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

179

During the year ended 2013, a total of 70,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued
upon conversion of the CB3 (note 36). In October and
November 2013, CB3 with aggregate principal amounts
of HK$8,050,000 were converted into 70,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company in total at a conversion
price of HK$0.115 each, resulting in an increase in share
capital and share premium of the Group of approximately
HK$700,000 and approximately HK$7,319,000
respectively.

By a special resolution dated 4 July 2014, authorised share
capital of the Company for ordinary share of HK$0.01
each was consolidated on the basis of every ten into one
from 60,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
to 6,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each. The
issued share capital was consolidated on the basis of
ten into one from approximately 4,126,270,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to approximately 412,627,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 5 August 2014, 2,475,762,414 rights shares were
issued at the subscription price of HK$0.188 per rights
share, resulting in an increase in share capital and share
premium of the Group of approximately HK$247,576,000
and approximately HK$217,867,000 respectively.

38. A (&
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RZZ—=F RE-PABRREFE
HE B %17 AR A4 70,000,000 8%
BREBE.01E LK EBAR (K E36) -
RZZE—=F+ARKT—A £&8%H
/48,050,000 LK E =AM REHE
BRHBESROMNSETHBARRTA
70,000,000 % & A% « & SRS B R A
K B& 153 33 8 5 B 3 0 49 700,000 7% 7T & 49
7,319,000/8 7T °

REBHA-Z—NFELAMA ZERIR
HE - AQARSREEIBILZEBR
EERACESTRAMAE RAELERE
77 & $f © f160,000,000,000 i & K& @ (&
0.01 77t 2 EiBik A #f & 6,000,000,000 A%
BREMBOIOETZ LA - DEITRA
BEREBTRAHAE—BROEEETAMH
FA #94,126,270,000 f% & % M {5 0.01 7% 7T
ZEBIA G A 412,627,000 B SRR E(E
0.10%8 Tz Limhk -

RZTE—MENRAH 2,475,762,414 (%
HBRBRMHEEREETRERRGK0.188
BILERT BRAKEZRARRSG
i 8 2 Bl 38 0 #9247,576,0007% T & 4
217,867,00078 7T °
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39. RESERVES

The Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 56
of the consolidated financial statements.

The special reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries under the reorganisation.

The contributed surplus account was designated by
the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda which represented (i) the entire
amounts standing to the credit balance of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June 2010;
(ii) the transfer of the share premium arising from capital
reduction on 29 September 2010; and (i) the offset with
the accumulated losses in full up to 31 December 2010.

39. flfh

AL

REEARFEE FBEF RO FEEEER LR
HENEANTEHRRECANGFAERED
RAZF -

5 1) 485 1 P A R B /BB X R AR P RO T R LK
NEREBER BRI AT UK B A B ARG ™
BITHRMOHEEME R ERR -

ARBIFEENESRERR(EERRBRE
—NN—FREDE)HE () AR ARG E R
RZZE-—ZTFERA=ZTHNERZHELEL
(EA=ZZ—TFNA =T+ ARKHIREFTE
R R EAER - (i) BEEHEEE T
—TEF-_A=t—HMNRFEE -

EE I EMARAF
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39. RESERVES (Continued) 39. fikfh (&)

The Company A H]
Convertible
bonds Share
Share Capital equity ~ Warrant Contributed options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
TARES  RRER
RGEE  EARE  EERE fife EMRH BRERE ZER Eh
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKSO000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TEn TEL Fhn TEL Fhn TEL Thn
The Company KA
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-Z-=£--H
Ltk 412,074 25) - - 76,471 26220 (34441 480,308
Issue of convertiole bond (note 36) &7 Bk (Rt 36) - - 128518 5 e = - 128518
Transaction costs of equty component AT ERER T4
of convertile bond (note 36) oK (M 36) - - (500) - - - - (500)
Shares issued upon conversion of 3 AT AR BT
convertible bond Bkl 7319 - (654) - - = = 6,665
Redemption of convertble bonds BRI AR EH
(note 36) (M3 36) - - (12,899 - - - - (12,89)
Issue of warrants (note 35) BTRIEE (H35) - - - 6,831 - - 5 6,831
Transaction costs ofissuance of R RBEE 2 RAME
warrans (note 35) (Fisk3s) = = = (432) E = e 432)
Shares issLie expenses UEBIF (261) - - - - - - (261)
Loss for the year TEEFR = S = - - - 26,500) (26,500
Balance at 31 December 2013 Rz
TIAST-B2Es 419132 (25 114466 6,399 76,471 620 (60941) 581,781
Issue of ordinary shares by BRARETERR
Rights Issue (note 38) (PHsE38) 217,867 - - - - - - 27867
Early redemption of RYEETARES
convertible bonds - - (63,426 - - - 53,065 (10,361)
Transaction costs atirbute to R A
Rights Issue expenses REWA (16,988) = = = = = = (16,988)
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - - (103868 (103,868
Balance at 31 December 2014~ W=F-M%
TIAZT-HzHE% 620,011 (25 51,040 6,309 16,471 26,200 (111,744) 668,381
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RESERVES (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a
result of capital reorganisation and represents the entire
amounts standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company as at 30 June 2010 and the
credits arising from capital reduction for eliminating or
setting off the accumulated losses of the Company from
time to time. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that: () it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (i) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation and represents the excess of the
combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.

39. Gtk (&)

ARAF (&)

ARRNMEZBARDERANEAMES - B
ARAR-ZE—ZFRA=THNRMNEE
AREVERR 2R R RAHBFTE SRR - AIA
HIR B AR R TR RETEE - RIEA
RE-NN—FRADE  ARBNEHER
RAIME DK o AT A G REEAE ()
ARATREHN B EFEH EIRIOK IR
BRELDIRE TR EF A E ¢ i)
ARRBEENAIEREESEAMIRERE
RE B BHITRA R R ERAOBHN - Al
AR EERAKRTE RSB SIE
H K

ARRNERFEBIIEEEMES - BIFTIK
BIBARNAHEEFESLARRER
REMBITHRAEERNIED ©
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. REHE RN

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which approximately fall
due as follows:

Rk - AEBRETITHBCERE
A LT R A B B (T RME - BIIER
o

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Within one year - —FR 2,767 2,721
In the second to fifth years inclusive CBIEERF(BREEEMT) 8,820 8,741
Over five years o hakad 58,935 62,461
70,522 73,923

The HRL Group (as defined in note 47) leased three
pieces of land located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan,
the PRC, under operating leases of 20 years commencing
from 3 October 2010 and renewable for another 20 years
automatically. One piece of land had been leased since
2010 and recognised as finance lease obligation in 2011
as disclosed in note 34. One piece of land had been
leased since 2011 and terminated during the year ended
31 December 2013. The Group also leased a property
under operating leases which are run for an initial period
of five years. None of these leases include contingent
rentals.

FRSE(EERME4)RELERE
HALPBEGLUAKRLUN=ELY B _-F
—EEtTAZABAM_T+F WADE
HZ+F - B ES4FAKRE - Hp— 18
TE —T-TEREHERR T ——F
ERAMBHERE -Hbh—BLtia —F
——FEEHEERNBE_FT—=F1+_A
=t+—BLEFERKLILAEE - REBTRE
REMERE-EYE  ZHEEENS RAH
hE - ZFHEMIEEIAEL -

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited

1 83 Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 3 0 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. BEARKWE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BaRI#BREE
Construction of properties (note (a)) MR (M () 3,068 32,909
Formation of a joint venture (note (b)) LG & (5 () - 2,400
3,068 35,309
Authorised but not contracted for: BHUEBRETL -
Construction of properties (note (a)) YR (M @) 79,466 158,752
Notes: BT
(@)  Capital commitment for construction in properties related (@ MEFEZMHERFEZENETP L HE
to capital commitment for construction of film studio and BRI KBEEARNEE - BRIBERKE
hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was A9 4% B 2 AN S 1B B A B 49 | L) T 30 U5 BUAS BT
approved by the directors of the Company according to FIIM T EERZE (N EEEE I
the land lease agreements signed between the Group and BRIREERARREERMEELE) -
the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the FRRESCTECHARRESIE
leasing of lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations as disclosed
in note 49.
(o) On 17 December 2012, one of the subsidiaries of ) RZZT—= iJr_ BA++8 ' AQF
the Company, NA Films, entered into a joint venture F-ERBARREER %EE@?%ZZ% = 7?
agreement (the “JV agreement”) with an independent %%ET/\ ﬁ%ﬁ% H(eEmzED -
third party to establish a joint venture for the development ?é‘ FEB M W v—EeEED % $E
of cinema business. According to the JV agreement, %Tﬁ% BABLEREIATME
the registered capital of the joint venture to be injected 7T'<19 000,000 T BEFZEBHAEE
will be HK$19,000,000 in which 60% will be held by NA HhA960% © F I 3 = Tf—¢+ A

Films. The amount of HK$11,400,000, representing the
capital of the joint venture to be injected by NA Films, is
thus shown as capital commitment of the Group as at 31
December 2012. During the year ended 2013, the capital
of the joint venture of HK$9,000,000 has been injected by
NA Film. The remaining capital commitment is therefore
HK$2,400,000 as at 31 December 2013. The remaining
balance of HK$2,400,000 was paid on 9 May 2014.

=+ —BITRAREEEREKENSRE
11,400,000 B TTAHERBEBEZREEAE
BOrENEAR - HE-_ZT—=FILtFE
B #EE M6 & %¥FE AE 79,000,000
BBt RZFE—=F+=-A=+—
A K R #4 & A EHE K 2,400,000 7T © #A%E
2,400,000 TER=E—NFHRANBX
fif e

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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42.

43.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group participates in employee social security plans
as required by the regulations in the PRC. The Group also
participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme to
which all qualified employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are entitled. The assets of the retirement benefit schemes
are held, separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of the trustees. The employees of the
subsidiaries in the PRC are members of social security
schemes operated by the relevant local government
authorities. The pension plans are funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant group companies.
The amounts charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represent
contributions payable by the Group at the specified rates
according to the respective plans. The only obligation of
the Group in respect of the retirement benefit schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had share options
schemes for employee compensation as set out below.

(a) Post initial public offering share option
scheme

The post initial public offering share option scheme
(“Post-IPO Option Scheme”) was conditionally
approved by a resolution of the sole shareholder
dated 22 July 2002 (the “Effective Date”). Major
terms of this scheme are summarised as follows:

()  The Post-IPO Option Scheme enables the
Company to grant share options to selected
persons as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

2. B A E

AEERBFBERZAELREBHLER
[Bitd - AEE T2 EERRAEEREE
ZFBRERER ZBHIEATRETE - &
KRN ZEERARBZEERETEA
FRES 2 ZENFRRE - RPBEHBERRZ
BERBRAEHMBTRELH 2@ RRE
22K B - RINFTEI 2 B2 KRR EER KA
AERERRZEHK - KGR BRRREMEE
WamR ARZ SEAARERES IR
LR BN ZHR - AEBBRERENE
B2 —EERELREMRRK

VAT Ay 22 2 Y8 4 5 oK 22 5

N-ZE-—NF+_A=1+—H xXEEBT
H A& 8 BN m L A IR o

(a) RO BA 4 T A% i J e it 38

BR-RABREBRETS(EHERIR
FRARREBERESE DR -_TT_F
AT+ ATERB D HE—RRE
IRBRAB G HHLE - ZFTENTE
Rt T

() ERABIRERE MR BEA
D FEAEHIR A+ 5 B R
1 fEARSHAREELER
B0 SR KB4 -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continued)

(i)

)

(iv)

The participants of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme include any employee, director,
advisor and consultant, supplier, customer
and shareholder of any member of the Group
as well as any provider of financial assistance
to any member of the Group.

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share option
offer. The share option offer will be offered for
acceptance for a period of 14 days from the
date on which the offer is granted.

Share options may be granted on such terms
and conditions in relation to their vesting,
exercise or otherwise as the board of directors
of the Company may determine, provided such
terms and conditions shall not be inconsistent
with any other terms and conditions of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme. The grantees are
not required to hold any share options or any
shares allotted pursuant to any share options
for any minimum period.

The subscription price for the shares under the
Post-IPO Option Scheme will be determined
by the board of directors of the Company
and notified to each grantee and will be at
least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the share option, which must be a business
day, (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (c)
the nominal value of a share.

43. VAt 2 B MBIk 22 5 (42)

(a)

BRI EBER AR

—B-mEFR

TR PR B AR i M A B (42

)

BRARBERIRERESE2HE
ERRAEEEFAKNERRNE
mMEE - EF BERRIEXE
M HER - TP RBRE - AR
Al AN 52 B{EAAT B B 2 B4R B IR
BBMAT -

ARARENERIEERNEN
RARTM1BTT - BRIEES
A AT R B BB ET 14 R
T AR o

BREARBEITHALARESS
ETABBERENER  1TEX
Hofth 73 T VSR R AR R
HEZFERARGE L AEERA
A FR A 14 B8 A HE =t 1 0 () EL
RN R AR — B - AR AERIR
TARENREFEHRFEEM
R SR BB A PTAC 3
HAD ©

RIBE IR R HBE B &
RBROOREE - HAARQF
EXeBETYMERARA M
ZEREVARAT=ZE0ERS
E @QRBRERLBEH(LA
REER) RO PIE A |
ERMBEHE : (o) RFEFLA
HRT A A2 X BRI R R PTE
B ¥REXRMTRFHWRHE : K(o)
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

187

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continued)

(vi)

(il

(viil)

The limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme and other
share option schemes must not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Post-IPO Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at 17 October 2002, amounting
to 49,219,623 shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”). The Company may renew the Scheme
Mandate Limit at any time subject to prior
shareholders’ approval. However, the Scheme
Mandate Limit as renewed must not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
the aforesaid shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Post-IPO Option Scheme
to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue from
time to time. Any further grant of share options
to such grantee which would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all share options granted and to be granted
to such grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the shares in issue, must be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and
his associates abstaining from voting.

43. VAIBctr 2 B MBIk 22 5 (42)

(a)
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(vi)

(vii)

(i)
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S M EMERE DR DR
RITERFT B RITHEINE R E
EITEMmMARERITHRMEE -
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BV FT B R AR T T AJ BEFE 1T
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  43. DAy %5 EMNT k2 5 (&)

(Continued)

(a) Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continued)

(iX) A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Option Scheme at any time during the
period notified by the board of directors of
the Company to each grantee provided that
the period within which the share option must
be exercised shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant of the share option.

(X)  The Post-IPO Option Scheme remains valid
for a period of 10 years commencing on the
Effective Date. In addition, the Company may,
by ordinary resolution in general meeting or
the board of directors of the Company may at
any time terminate the operation of the Post-
IPO Option Scheme. Share options which are
granted during the life of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company, the
Post-IPO Option Scheme was terminated on 29
September 2010.

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

(a)

TR PR B AR i M At B (42

(x) BEREIRBARAEZSEMN
BARANBEARERREER
R AR B AR R T B A0 15 R
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o

)  BRAFHEBRRBRETSIRE
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RERYATBHARAEESHER
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

189

New share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the

extraordinary general meeting of the Company, a

new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
approved on 29 September 2010. Major terms of
this scheme are summarised as follows:

(i

)

The purpose of the New Scheme is to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to selected person
and to promote the success of the business of
the Group;

The participants of the New Scheme
include any employee of the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company, a director,
a shareholder, a supplier, a customer or
any subsidiary of the Company; an agent,
adviser, consultant, strategist, contractor,
sub-contractor, expert or entity that provides
research, development or other technological
support or any valuable services to Company
or any of its subsidiary; a holder of any
securities issued by Company or any of its
subsidiary;

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share option
offer. The share option offer will be offered for
acceptance for a period of 14 days from the
date on which the offer is granted;
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) New share option scheme (Continued)

(iv)

No offer of a New Share Option which is
capable of or open for acceptance shall be
made after the expiry of the exercise period
pursuant to the New Scheme;

The subscription price for the share under the
New Scheme will be determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion at the time of making
the offer of grant of a new share option but
in any case the subscription price must be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
grant, which must be a Business Day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five Business Day immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (i)
the nominal value of the shares;

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the New Scheme and any
other schemes in aggregate not exceeding
10 per cent of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 14 May 2013 (2012: 29
June 2012), amounting to 4,056,270,695
(2012: 808,254,139 before the right issue of
the Company in December 2012) shares (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time
subject to the approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting provided that such renewed
limit shall not exceed 10 per cent of the
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
such limit;
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

191

New share option scheme (Continued)

(vii)

(viil)

()

The total number of New Shares issued and to
be issued upon the exercise of the New Share
Options granted to each grantee (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding Share
Options) in any 12 month period shall not
exceed 1 per cent of the relevant class of
securities of the Company in issue. Further
New Share Options may be granted to such
grantee, which, if exercised, would result in
such grantee becoming entitled to subscribe
for New Shares in excess of the limit, by
obtaining approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting with such grantee and his
associate(s) abstaining from voting;

The share options may be exercised in whole
or in part by the Participant at any time
during the exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10
years from the date of grant of the relevant
New Share Options pursuant to the New
Scheme, by delivering to the Company a
notice duly signed in a form approved by the
Board (together with payment of the exercise
price in full in respect of each New Share to
be subscribed for) and delivery of the New
Share Option certificate for amendment or
cancellation; and

The New Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on the
date on which the New Scheme becomes
unconditional. The Board may amend any of
the provisions of the New Scheme or withdraw
or otherwise terminate the New Scheme at any
time but no alterations shall be made to the
advantage of any Participant unless approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting. All New
Share Options granted prior to such termination
and not then exercise shall continue to be valid
and exercisable subject to and in accordance
with the terms of the New Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

(Continued)

(b)

New share option scheme (Continued)

No share option was granted during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by the directors,
employees as well as advisors and consultants.

(b)

43. VAIBctr 2 B MER A R 22 5 (42)

W PR ) ()

BHE_ZT—NWFEE_T—=F+2_A
=t+—HIEFE #$EREEAER
7% o

TREREE - BEULEBERLER
BREMFARRBERENES -

Number of share option
LheiE
Lapsed/ Qutstanding
Granted expired Exercise Adjusted Adjusted at
Outstanding at during during during upon share upon 31 December
1 January 2014 the year the year theyear  consolidation Right Issue 2014
Note (c) Note (d) Note (¢)
H-%-BE
#-%-Bf RERXH/ v t2A=1-8
-A-REAGE  RERRH ER RERGR  AfdER RithiEE HAGE
Hit(o Hit () Wikl

Option type EREE

PostIPO Option Scheme ANORARAERES | 124255288 -

- (s B 1288528
- (619808 WE0 1078108

- (2544952) 844,612 23,672,325

New Scheme EHE 104,022,000 -
208,217,233 -

Brecisableat heend of heyear  RERT(E 208277.233

Weighted average everisepice  METETRE HK$0.52 7 -

23,672,325

- - - HKsA8ER

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  43. DAy 25 MM a2 5 (&)

(Continued)
(b) New share option scheme (Continued) (o) 7 Ik R Mt ) (42)
Number of share option
ERiEHE
Lapsed/
expired Adusted  Qutstanding
Granted during Bxercise upon a
Qutstanding at during the year during rightissue 31 December
1 January 2013 the year Note (c) the year Note (¢) 2013
RERKH/ n-%E-=
WZF-=% EW REREE +-A=1-0
—A-BRATE  REREL Mo  RERGE I3k g) WAITE
Option type EREER
Post-PO Option Scheme ERDRARGEREE 124,255,283 - - - - 142500
New Scheme EHE 104,022,000 - - - - 104,022,000
228,277,233 - - - - 2821723
Exercisable at the end of the year RERTIE 208,077,233 208.277,283
Weighted average evercise price MEPAEE HKS052 AT - - - - HKS0s2BT
Notes: Btk -
(@)  The exercise price of options outstanding at the end @ RERRTEBERENTEENT
of the year ranged between HK$3.00 and HK$7.90 3.00BILE7TOBL(ZT—=F:
(2013: HK$0.30 and HK$0.79) and their weighted NTF0.30FILE0.797 L) « H g
average remaining contractual life was 5.8 years THFBENBEAESSF(ZE—=
(2013: 6.8 years). F£:6.84F)
(b)  No options were exercised during the years ended ) BEZZT—HNEERZZT—=F+2=A
31 December 2014 and 2013. =+ —HIEFEEEREETE
() No options were lapsed or expired when the () HBIEBRENESFEREMALEE
employee resigned and left the Group. BF R RS E M ©
1 9 3 National Arts Enti:iilr:;:e:;t sg;jt (;l(,l)[’:lire Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  43. DAy %5 EMNT k2 5 (&)

(Continued)
(b) New share option scheme (Continued) (o) 7 ik R M it ) (42)
Notes: (Continued) MizE : (&)
(d)  As aresult of the Share Consolidation, the numbers @) HBRNETRME O BRESE T
of share options and their exercise prices have been EECIEERAE -
adjusted.
(e)  As a result of the Rights Issue, the numbers of C HRETTHAR - BARER A MITERE
share options and their exercise prices have been EHEAE -
adjusted.
At 31 December 2014, the number of shares of which ﬁé\:%—ﬂli—l—’:ﬁ E"—__E' F BRRE
options had been granted and remained outstanding BREEERLEMARTERREZ
under the share option scheme was 23,672,325 (2013: B A /23,672,326 (=F—= i_:
228,277,233) representing approximately 0.82% (2013: 228,277,233/ + (AR R Z B E#AT
5.5%) of the Company’s issued shares capital at that date. BRAR#0.82% (ZF— =% : 5.5%) °
During the year, no share-based payment was recognised FA WERAARRTESRERBZE
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and BRAER AR B R 2 T s R RS DA R 1)
comprehensive income in relation to share options granted REREZ M RERAL RN ERER
to the directors and employees by the Company, with a AR EE
corresponding adjustment in the Company’s share option
reserve.
44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. BB 2 5
Details of balances with related parties are set out in the BRRHR TS Z AR R IR SN M B R R B AR B
statements of financial position and respective notes. FRYEE o BR UL 501 75 Sk EL th b 5 PRAER SN
Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial REBREBMHEILTINRS ¢

statements, the Group has also entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

2014 2013

—E-mEF —ZE—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Interest paid to a related company B —HEE A RF A 1,324 1,074

Interest paid to a shareholder B —RBREFE 1,710 —

Compensation of key management personnel FEA A B A

The directors of the Group consider that they are the only TEEESZRA  KEALASEZETEEE

key management personnel of the Group and details of AB - HENNSFIBERHE14 o

their compensation are set out in note 14.

EE I EMARAF
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45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 45. #aBaiidLMaE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Disposals of subsidiaries B B A
Dormant
subsidiaries
M AR
HK$'000
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_Z—=F+-A=+—HILFE FAT
Net liabilities disposed of: PIEEBEFHE -
Other payables and accruals E e FIE R FERTE A (1,520)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENE QR RIS 1,520
Consideration satisfied by cash LR ERRE -
Net cash flow in respect of the disposals of subsidiaries HEMBRARAFRER -
Construction costs payable WA TR
As at 31 December 2014, amounted to Nil (2013: RZB—NFE+_A=+—H  BEKRNH
approximately HK$105,716,000) and Nil (2013: ERIERREMESIENE(ZE—=
approximately HK$70,682,000) of additions to F 1 #9105,716,0008 L) R E(ZE —=
construction in progress and investment properties F 1 #970,682,0007870) © ERERE B RR
respectively have not yet been paid and recorded Mz [ EMENRIBERETER] NE
under “Other payable and accruals” in the consolidated Ao

statement of financial position.

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

46. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
A SUBSIDIARY

On 18 April 2013, the Company acquired 100% equity
interests of Broad Sky Investment Limited (“Broad Sky”)
from an independent third party, at a cash consideration
of HK$11,774,000. Broad Sky is incorporated in Hong
Kong which has no business activities since incorporation
and only held a vacant office premise in Hong Kong.

The acquisition was accounted for as acquisition of
assets and liabilities. The difference between the net cash
consideration paid and the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities of Broad Sky at the date of acquisition
represented the additional fair value of the leasehold land
and building acquired by the Company.

The assets and liabilities acquired and the breakdown of
consideration paid are as follows:

46. JH 8 W PR B 2 W) HE 5 1) I 2 A LR

RZZE—=FMA+N\B  AQRA—%B
VE=ZFWBEREREERAR([EX])
100% I A" - RER(E R 11,774,000
7T o RN EBFEMAL - 8 M LAZR
WEXEEE  EREES —E=ERLE
E

WEESKBEERAGBARK B FRS
REEBRXNEEMRENKE A HNRE
ENER  HERARRMKBEE LK
BFBEINAAE -

EWEEENMEERENRENRAMAERN
™

Fair value at Broad Sky’s
acquisition carrying
date amount
HAUEE B H BN
HARE BREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

The assets and liabilities arising from HWEEENEE

the acquisition are as follows: RaEmT

Leasehold land and building (note 16) METHREF (KizE16) 11,778 9,715
Accruals FEETE A 4) (4)
Amount due to shareholder (note) AR BR SR IE (P 5T ) (10,901) (10,901)
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE/(AF) 873 (1,190)

Total consideration paid in cash BEUB S ARBRE

(cash outflow on acquisition) (WEEMIRSRH) 11,774
Less: amount due from Broad Sky (note) B EAOIE R A (M5 (10,901)
Net consideration for acquisition W FRE 873

Note: Upon the completion of the acquisition, the amount due REKKEER - BRENER ZREGE
by Broad Sky to the vendor would be assigned to the FTARRE] °
Company.

EE I EMARAF
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47. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS  47. 3 2% 2 45 i HE 0% Bt 88 2 W) Fir A HE B

197

IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT CHANGE OF
CONTROL

On 28 February 2011, the Group has obtained 51%
equity interests of each of HRL and EPL, which together
with their respective subsidiaries, became subsidiaries of
the Group.

On 28 June 2013, the sale and purchase agreement
(the “Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the
Company, Glory Max Group Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the “Purchaser”) and Mr. Sin
Kwok Lam (a non-executive director, chairman and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, the “Vendor”)
(as supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated
9 July 20183). Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire (i) 49% of the
entire issued share capital of each of HRL and EPL and
(i) the loans made to HRL and EPL by the Vendor as at
the date of completion of the acquisition from the Vendor
at an aggregate consideration of HK$550,000,000, which
will be satisfied partly by cash of HK$130,000,000 and
partly by the Company’s issue of the convertible bonds
of HK$420,000,000 (CB4 in note 36) to the Vendor (the
“Acquisitions”).

The Proposed Acquisition was completed on 4 October
2018 and resulted in an increase in equity interests of
49% in HRL and EPL, which constituted a change in the
Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that does not
result in a change of control. According to HKFRS 10,
the Acquisition is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Any difference between the amount by which non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid is recognised directly in equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

Annual Report 2014
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RZFE——FZAZ+N\AB - AEBERE
EANKFERES51% R %M
ARERKEESENNBAREKALTER
KB AR °

RZE—=FA=-+/\H ' &KQF - Glory
Max Group Limited (A AR Z2&EKIB AR -
(B ) BERMELE (KRRFERNITES -
FTRRTERR [EFDILEE RS
(ThEH=ED (KBHAE-ZT—=FtAN
BMERBEAER) - BEKERZ B
FEGERRERE S WE () BB RAKTEF
RSB 2BEBITRAM 49% & (i) BH R
TREEE AREABRATFRRIEEHNE
o #HR{EA550,000,00058 7T - BHRER
LAIR £ 130,000,000 7T R A A Bl [M B /5 2%
17420,000,000 7% 7T /Y A 2 % & % (M 3% 36
BT HE RIRAR &) M E A ([ W EES=E D) -

BRREUBFEFREN -_ZT—=F+HWEART
B BERER AT FhRENR A ERIE
AN49% - It B8 PR 7 55 (B 70 I 8 2K 5 P2 )
MM B AR ARESEE - RIBEEHM
BRELAFE 105 - WESRERBRARZ S
AR o EABMIFERERSREESNRE
NARBEZHENEMER  RARRHEE AR
i B R ER
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47. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT CHANGE OF

CONTROL (Continued)

The effect of the changes in the ownership interests in

HRL and EPL is summarised as follows:

47, 3 5% 243 0 BE Y VR 2 ) I A HERE

A E) ()

RERRKFAERREMBEESZESHOZE
BEaian R

Fair value of consideration paid
— Cash consideration
-CB4

Add: Transaction costs paid for the Acquisition
Less: Settlement of loans (note)

Consideration satisfied by cash

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired

Excess consideration paid over carrying amount

Note:

According to the Acquisition Agreement, the

HK$’000
FHBT

BARENARE
-\ E 130,000
- EPUHt AT R E S 430,196

e RRBERDHORZRA
o ERER (M)

PR BN RE

BB IR R E B

(110,151)

452,689

221,606

ENEREEENRE 231,083
GEE
loans made RIBERE RS EARAKREBESTEEHRERERK

by the Vendor to HRL and EPL amounted to approximately
HK$110,151,000 at the date of Acquisition will be transferred

by the Vendor to the Purchaser at the time when t
completed.

he Acquisition

EE I EMARAF
—T-mEER

EEREERANEZRL110,151,000/8 7T © R
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47. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS  47. 3 2% 2 45 i HE 0% Bt 88 2 W) Fir A HE B

IN SUBSIDIARIES WITHOUT CHANGE OF ta S (42)
CONTROL (Continued)
Summarised financial information in relation to the non- TXE2yEBERRERBAR([ERE
controlling interests of HRL and its subsidiaries (the “HRL BDUERKFFrREEMRBAR ([ KFF
Group”) and EPL and its subsidiaries (the “EPL Group”), MESE ] EERER (R EEBERKIEC
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: AT BB IS BRI E -
For the period
from 1 January 2013
to 4 October 2013
(the Acquisition date)
=¥-=%—-HA-H
E-®-=%1+AMA
(UefE B HA) 28
HK$’000
FiBT
HRL Group HEEE
Revenue WA 2,425
Profit for the year FE R 2,085
Total comprehensive income ZHEWA LT 5,292
Profit allocated to NCI AT IR AE R H R T 1,022
Cash flows from operating activities KEFHHNREME (37,389)
Cash flows from investing activities HEEHNIRERE (21,300)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEPHNIRERE 49,953
Net cash outflows e ML F5E (8,736)
EPL Group AFFHAREE
Revenue ON 465
Loss for the year FEEHE (9,454)
Total comprehensive expense ZHRAX R 6,751)
Loss allocated to NCI SBLF IR R EE (4,633)
Cash flows from operating activities LEEHNIRERE (73,377)
Cash flows from investing activities HEEZNRERE (51,386)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEPHNRERE 102,284
Net cash outflows RemLF5E (22,479)
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

At 31 December 2014, the Company had corporate
guarantee of HK$12,400,000 (2013: HK$12,400,000)
given to a related company to secure loans to NA
Entertainment, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

According to the land lease agreements signed between
the Group and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in
relation to the leasing of lands for development of tourism
and related entertainment business and hotel operations,
the Group shall invest no less than RMB600 million for
the projects or the Group is liable to pay RMB8 million
as damages to the local authority. The completion of
constructions and commencement of operations of the
projects shall be within three and four years respectively
from the signing of the lease agreements. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the conditions
set in the leasing agreements could be achieved and no
provision for liability is necessary.

48.

49.

BRI EEBRAF

—2-mEER

MBI 2

R-ZE—ME+-_FA=+—0  AQFHE—
fE RARE A R EH £ %85 12,400,000 7T (=
T— =4 : 12,400,000 7T ) R EER
EARBEYR (ARAMELEN B AR ) E
REROER -

AR AR

AR5 7 5= [ B AP B 9% | Ly T kb 5 A R 3R T Y
THEEHE (AR S REE L BRI
PEARMBHERERBEER)  NEEA
M3 B {2 A R % 600,000,000 7T HY
RE FAEEERAMARBIFARE
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50. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(@)

Subsequent to 31 December 2014, certain bank
loan facilities were secured by leasehold buildings
with book amount of approximately HK$15,160,000
and a corporate guarantee granted by the Company.
Such bank loan facilities amounted to approximately
HK$17,000,000 were utilised to the extent of
approximately HK$16,940,000.

50. ¥ HRFIH

(@)

W-ZE—mE+-_A=+—H%"
ETROTEFRBEDHEEEAEY
15,160,000 8 T 2 HEZEF R AR A
RO ERRERR ZER1TE
LA #)517,000,0008 7T © EFE
&) 4916,940,000/8 7T °

(b) Subsequent to 31 December 2014, certain other by RZTE—HWF+=—_A=+—H?%"
borrowing facilities were secured by the share ETEMERREAARRATE
charge over of the entire share capital of direct or EAHE2EMNBRARNEZIRKRAE
indirect certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the EREER ZSEMERBE
Company. Such other borrowing facilities amounted H 5t #9200,000,0005% T E & 4
to approximately HK$200,000,000 were utilised to 110,000,000 &L E AL A ©
the extent of approximately HK$110,000,000.

(€) On 22 December 2014, Elegant Motion Enterprise 00 RZE—WmFE+_A=—+=H &2
Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the REEZENBRARIKICERTRA
Company entered into the sale and purchase AEEEE(ERREERBEAE
agreement (the “S&P Agreement”) with Mr. Sin (the RARI(TEEZERR] 2B BEITR
“Vendor”) for the sale and purchase of the entire ARZERIVEEHZE(TEEH
issued share capital of Lux Unicorn Limited (the #D o BEEERE  BAZBKME
“Target Company”) and the loans. Pursuant to RAELHERAAGEEKRHEREREE
the S&P Agreement, the Vendor has conditionally BEERAREHCBEITRE  BREA
agreed to sell and the Company has conditionally 400,000,000 7L °c AR A HRZE
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital —HFEMNATBRITREER RS
of the Target Company at a aggregate consideration EZERMAEBEARS - RILEFEETH
of HK$400,000,000. The special general meeting of WERBEBRE - BAKX S RARTAH °
Company to be held on 10 April 2015 to consider FHE—FFBFIENARATAHAC
and approve the transaction. At the date of approval T—NE+ A+ B2 AMRAE
of these consolidated financial statements, the ANEBHA-ZE—RF=A=-1+=H
transaction has not yet been completed. Further LB o
details of such are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 22 December 2014 and the
investment circular of the Company dated 23 March
2015.

2 O 1 National Arts Emi:im?; sg?t (;l(,l)l":lire Group Limited




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 3 0 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #&E _F— P4+ H=+—H IL4F

51. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 51. LR ¥E
For comparative purposes, certain figures have been AETHER B THBEEEN D EUERE
reclassified to conform with current year presentation B2 255 EAREENERE M ERE
to align with the consolidated financial statements 2B/ -

presentation of the Group.

52. DIVIDEND 52. BB
No dividend has been proposed or declared by the EEVERBEE_T—NF+-_A=+—H
directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: IFFEEBRRIEREMKRE(ZE—=4F:
Nil). =) o

53. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 53. bk B Lk

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended HE-Z—NF+_A=1+—HILFEH4E
31 December 2014 were approved for issue by the board AR REN _E—RHE=ZA_+tRHE
of directors on 27 March 2015. EEedERm -

ISR LB AR AR
—2-mEER




A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and

equity of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted

from the published audited consolidated financial statements, is

set out below. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

WA R

TXEIAEENBEREMBRFEENM B RS
NREE AEEZEZSE - DREECTENR

= =
E o)

RN~ -

BWEK - W B W IR XS T

FINANCIAL RESULTS LErE S
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
BN T —F T —T——F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FAET
Revenue/Turnover LONEE+
— Continuing operations - BB 15,260 19,094 6,789 16,116 10,505
- Discontinued operations - B4R IHEE S %55 - - - - 375
Revenue/Turnover WA &R 15,206 19,094 6,789 16,116 10,880
(Loss)/Profit before BRETSTAT
income tax (E518) & F (142,989) (17,682) 2,897 61,411 (36,407)
Income tax expense FriSHiF > (5,924) (6,543) (4,938 (32,344) =
(Loss)/Profit for the year REE
(E518) /& F (148,913) (24,225) (2,041) 29,067 (36,407)
Attributable to: TS IEEG
Owners of the Company ZiN/NCIEZ SN (148,913) (20,614) (12,917) (11,410) (36,407)
Non-controlling interests eI e - (3,611) 10,876 40,477 =
(148,913) (24,225) (2,041) 29,067 (36,407)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY &E - AELRER
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E2—NE —T—=F —T——F —T——F —FT-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT FAET FH&T FAT
Total assets BERE 1,835,642 1,572,053 1,007,741 671,309 231,586
Total liabilities Qs (763,168) (862,635) (213,926) (171,248) (13,092)
1,072,474 709,418 793,815 500,061 218,494
Equity attributable to the ZIN/NEIE YN
owners of the Company JE(GHE 1,072,474 709,418 571,494 289,356 218,494
Non-controlling interests Fealiig - - 222,321 210,705 -
1,072,474 709,418 793,815 500,061 218,494
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